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Sugar Mills Limited

Kohinoor - The King of Diamonds

Diamond, known as the most precious jewel of the world. Forged hundreds of kilometers below the
earth’s surface heat and pressure causing fragments of carbon to form diamond crystals. Kohinoor is
known to be the most precious diamond amongst them all.

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is undoubteldy the most prestigiously known amongst the industry,
succeed by its brand name “Kohinoor” (the king of diamonds), Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is one
of the oldest operational sugar producing conglomerate in the region, shining your beautiful journey of
happiness right through your special day, ensuring you cherish it forever.

Every Sugar crystal produced at Jauharabad SugarMills Limited is treated like a diamond has a story,
mix it with love and care and make most out of it.
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Geographical Location
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A JEWEL IN THE CROWN!

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is situated in the heart of
Punjab Province near Khushab District, one of the
richest sugarcane growing regions in Pakistan and a
central location for distribution, enjoying a real
positioning of a jewel in the crown!



:
i

Jauharabad

Jauharabad is named after Maulana Muhammad Ali
Jauhar, a prominent figure from the Pakistan
independence movement. Jauharabad was developed in
1953 under a master plan. Because of its planned design,
open spaces and wide avenues, the district headquarters
of Khushab District were shifted to Jauharabad from
Khushab city. Jauharabad lies at the confluence of the
Thal Desert and the Pothohar in flat agricultural territory
immediately south of the Salt Range, marking the end of
the Pothohar Plateau and the start of the Punjab plains.
The Jhelum River passes 7 Km southeast of Jauharabad,
while canals from Indus River irrigate much of its planes.
On the west of Jauharabad lies the Thal Desert and on
the east of Jauharabad is the Khushab Reserve Forest.
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Calendar of Major Events

Monday, January 30, 2017
First Quarter Results Issued

Friday, May 26, 2017
Second Quarter Results Issued

Friday, June 30, 2017
Extra Ordinary General Meeting Held

Monday, July 24, 2017
Third Quarter Results Issued

December 29, 2017

asults Issued

Satuday, January 27, 2018
49th Annual General Meeting Scheduled




Financial Highlights

Top Line
2017 - Rs. 2,581,987,414
2016 - Rs. 2,094,651,482

Gross Profit Ratio

11.62% During 2017
9.85% During 2016

Return on Capital Employed

7.35% During 2017
5.12% During 2016

Price Earning Ratio

26.48 Times During Year 2017
9.02 Times During Year 2016

Dividend Payout Ratio

53.48% During Year 2017
16.10% During Year 2016

Bottom Line

Rs. 31,855,699 During 2017
Rs. 105,997,346 During 2016
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Corporate Profile

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is a Public Limited Company, and has a privilege of
being one of the pioneer sugar mills of Pakistan. Initially it was setup by THAL
Development Corporation of Pakistan which was later privatized and was listed at
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and has been in operation for the last sixty-five
years. Further in March 2013 the current management acquired major shareholding
of the Company by taking over its assets and liabilities, paying-off old sponsors and
renaming it as Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited from Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited.
This takeover enabled the Company to settle previous bank /grower/creditor debts.
A major Balancing, Modernization and Replacement of Machinery has been carried
out thus enabling the Company to achieve stated capacity to 7,000 TCD of its
currently operating crushing line-ll, in addition to crushing line-I having stated
capacity of 5500 TCD. The new sponsors have shown their commitment by
conducting this BMR and repair works through their own resources. The Company
has successfully consolidated its Sugar Mills operations and financially strengthened
its position over period of four crushing seasons. The Company in June 2016
following its vision and strategy of diversification has opted to install biomass based
15MW Co-generation Power Plant, under Captive Power Plant regime with upfront
determined tariff, to export electricity. Power project is currently under
implementation with expected commencement of commercial operations by June,
2018.




Strategic Objectives and Commitments

JSML remains committed to grow core business of sugar production and to invest in allied
projects that will optimize return to the Company. Business diversification strategy will help to
overcome risk associated to sugar business.

To achieve the highest ethical and moral business values and in true spirit compliance of
Code of Corporate Governance.

Exploring and enhancing the potential of our human resources while seeking employee
involvement, continuous improvement and sharing the success of the Company.

To adopt safe operational practices, continuous process of modernization of production
facilities, cost effective measures, enhance capacity efficiency and strict adherence to high
quality standards.

To maintain highest standards of HSE and environmental protection and catering the social
welfare requirements of the communities inhabiting the area of operations.

To achieve quantum growth, long-term sustainability and to provide attractive value addition
to all stakeholders while contributing towards the prosperity of the people of this country.

| Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited



Vision Statement

‘ ‘ To become a market leader in the industry while setting
out high quality standards. ’,




Mission Statement

“To produce quality sugar and allied products by maintaining a high standard of
efficiency and staying competitive to ensure customer satisfaction and to

provide a comfortable level of return to all stakeholders. , ,




Teamwork

We believe TEAMWORK
empowers our
individual strength.

We believe HONESTY “ a

is an integral part
of our working relationships.

Integrity

We believe INTEGRITY is at the heart
of our individual and corporate actions.

RESPECT
We believe RESPECT
to each other will

guide us in all our
decisions.




Statement of Ethics &
Business Practices

The following principles constitute the code of conduct which all Directors
and employees of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited are required to apply in
their daily work and observe the code of conduct of the Company’s
business. While the Company will ensure that all employees are fully aware
of these principles, it is the responsibility of each employee to implement the
Company’s policies, any contraventions against it will be viewed as
misconduct towards the code.

The code emphasizes the need for a high standard of honesty and integrity
which are vital for the success of any business.

ETHICAL PRINCIPLES:

1.

Directors and employees are expected not to engage in any
activity which can cause conflict between their personal interests
and the interest of the Company such as interest in an
organization supplying goods/services to the Company or
purchasing its products. In case a relationship with such an
organization exists, the same must be disclosed to the
Management.

Dealings with third parties which include Government officials,
suppliers, buyers, agents and consultants must always ensure
that the integrity and reputation of the Company are not in any
way compromised.

Directors and employees are not allowed to accept any favours or
kickbacks from any organization dealing with the Company.

Directors and employees are not permitted to divulge any
confidential information relating to the Company to any
unauthorized person, nor should they, while communicating
publicly on matters that involve Company business, presume to
speak for the Company unless they are certain that the views that
they express are those of the Company and it is the Company’s
desire that such views be publicly disseminated.

All employees share a responsibility for the Company’s good
public relations particularly at the community level. Their readiness
to help with religious, charitable, educational and civic activities is
accordingly encouraged provided it does not create an obligation
that interferes with their commitment to the Company’s best
interests.

The Company has strong commitment to the health and safety of
its employees and preservation of the environment and the
Company will persevere towards achieving continuous
improvement of its Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
performance by  reducing potential hazards, preventing
pollution and improving awareness. Employees are required to
operate the Company’s facilities and processes keeping this
commitment in view.

Commitment and team work are key elements to ensure that the
Company’s work is carried out effectively and efficiently. Also all
employees will be equally respected and actions such as sexual
harassment and disparaging remarks based on gender, religion,
race or ethnicity will be avoided.
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Management Committee

Imran llyas

Chief Financial Officer Sheikh Amjad SIS

General Manager Operation

Chaudhary Muhammad Younus
General Manager Cane

Saif Ur Rehman
Head of Power Project

Amanat Ali

Khwaja Arslan Ahmed
Head of Electrical

Head of Commercial

Fateh Ullah
Head of Technical

Tarig Mehmood
Head of Human Resource

Syed Muhammad Usman Afzaal
Head of Internal Audit
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NOTE:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from
January 20, 2018 to January 27, 2018 (both days inclusive).
Transfer received in order by the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s
Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model
Town, Lahore upto the close of business on Friday, January 19,
2018 will be treated in time for entitlement to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint
another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote on his/her
behalf. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors
Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the
representative shall be submitted along with Proxy Form of the
Company. Proxies, in order to be affective, must be received at the
registered office of the Company 48 hours before the time of holding
of the meeting.

Those members who have deposited their shares with the Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are requested to
bring their original CNIC, Account and Participation’s Numbers.
Such members will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down
in the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s Circular
No. 1 dated January 26, 2000.

The members should quote their folio number in all correspondence
with the Company and at the time of attending the Annual General
Meeting.

Members are requested to notify the change of their registered
addresses, Zakat Declaration, and tax exemption status, if any, duly
accompanied with its valid certificates, immediately to Company’s
Share Registrar.

According to SECP directive, dividend warrant is to bear the CNIC
number of the registered members. Therefore, the members who
have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIIC are once
again requested to send the same to the Share Registrar of the
Company.

As per provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any
dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled members.
Accordingly, all members are requested to provide Dividend
Mandate Information to the Company’s Share Registrar, member
broker, participant/CDC investor Account Services. In case of
shares held in CDC, the same information should be provided
directly to the CDS. A notice of the foregoing seeking information
from the members is being sent to them separately. Standard
Request form has also been placed on the Company’s website
www.jsml.com.pk. In case of failure to provide the information, the
Company will be unable to pay the dividend.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act 2017 effective from
July 01, 2017, the rate of deduction of income tax from dividend
payments has been revised as follows:

i Rate of Tax deduction for filers of income tax return 15%

i Rate of Tax deduction for Non-filers of income tax return 20%

Shareholders whose names are not entered in the Active Tax-Pay-
ers List (ATL) available on the website of FBR, despite the fact that
they are filers, are advised to immediately make sure that their
names are entered in ATL, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will
be deducted @20% instead of 15%.

The Corporate members having CDC account are required to have
their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with their respective
participants, whereas corporate physical members should send a
copy of their NTN certificate to the Company's Share Registrar.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

As per FBR's clarification, the valid Exemption Certificate under
Section 159 of the Ordinance is mandatory to claim exemption of
withholding tax under Clause 47B of Part-IV of Second Schedule to
the Ordinance. Those who fall in the category mentioned in above
Clause must provide valid Tax Exemption Certificate to the Compa-
ny's Share Registrar; otherwise tax will be deducted on dividend
amount as per prescribed rates.

The FBR has clarified that shareholders' accounts jointly held by
Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with separately and in such
particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a
Filer or a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his
shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable then each account
holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the
deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid
deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint account holders are
requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the
Company’s Share Registrar latest by the AGM date.

Folio/CDC
Account No.

Total
Shares

Name of
Shareholder

Principal/Joint

NI Shareholder

Shareholding

Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017 requires that any shares
that remain unclaimed for a period of three years (or more) are to
vest with Federal Government. The law requires the Company to
deposit any unclaimed or unpaid amount to the credit of the Federal
Government, if no claim is made before the Company after giving
due notices to the shareholders. Through this notice all
shareholders who by any reason could not claim their dividend or
shares are advised to immediately collect / enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any, with Company’s
Share Registrar.

The Annual Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the
year ended September 30, 2017
along with Auditors and Directors
Report and Chairman’s Review
Report thereon have been placed
on the Company's website:
www.jsml.com.pk

Transmission of Annual
Financial Statements through
email, the Securites and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan
vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated
September 08, 2014 has allowed
companies to circulate annual
balance sheet, profit & loss
account, auditor's and Directors’
reports and Chairman’s Review
Report along with notice of annual
general meeting to its members
through email. Members who wish
to avail this facility may send their
consent to the Company.

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through
CD/DVD/USB, SECP through its SRO 470()/2016 dated May 31,
2016 have allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet,
profit and loss account, auditors’ report and directors’ report and
Chairman’s Review Report etc. to its members through CD/DVD/USB at
their registered address. In view of the same, the members are requested to
intimate if they desire to receive the financial statements and reports through
any of these means. These will also be available on Company’s website
www.jsml.com.pk
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Chairman’s Review

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, under its vision “to become a market leader in the industry while setting
high quality standards though its premium brand KOHINOOR?”,is today recognized in market as symbol
of quality.

It is my pleasure to present Company’s outlook at the closure of this financial year, despite challenging
factors and risks presently associated with the industry, we have been able to sustain profitability through
diligent team efforts. In order to ensure operational efficiencies in coming years, the Company is primarily
focusing on capacity building of farmers through financial support, by providing varietal sugarcane seed
and educating them to opt for latest agronomical practices.

We have continued to fulfill our promise and commitment with all our stakeholders by achieving significant
growth in dispatches, productivity and profitability. It is important for us to strengthen our relationship with
our employees, customers and community and through this partnership we can look forward to a future
of greater innovation and sustainable progress. From strong performance by our business to
value-adding innovations and initiatives undertaken by our corporate functions, | am confident that the
information presented in this report will convey to you our determination to succeed in our aspiration of
creating enduring value.

At Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited we recognize that diversity and inclusion can make us stronger and
more effective organization in sugar sector. In line with our vision of diversification and keeping in view the
growing demand for electricity in the country, the Company has invested in bagasse based Power
Generation Plant, which is currently under installation.

| firmly believe that the business of our Company is well placed for the competitive future as we are
committed to produce premium quality sugar along with vialue addition in by-products. The Company is
consistently maintaining reputation of its quality, integrity and is enjoying strong relationship with its
customers in domestic and global marketplace. Finally, | acknowledge the commitment and diligence of
my fellow directors during the year under review and thank our CEO and his executive team for their
continued work.

s

Muhammad Aamir Beg
Chairman

Lahore: December 29, 2017



The Board of Directors place before you the annual report of
the Company together with the audited financial statements
and the Auditors’ report thereon for the year ended September
30, 2017.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Sugar industry, being second largest agro-based industry,
play avital role in creating health economic activities in the
country. This year sugarcane crop remained highest
contributor to agricultural GDP growth of the country and
generated Rs. 325 billion revenues to farmers. During this crop
year sugarcane, the basic raw material, has been grown on
approximately 1.23 million hectares of land [CY16: 1.13 million
hectares] resulting in an estimated production of 76.6 million
tons [CY16: 65.45 million tons], an increase of 17.03% YOY
bases, mainly attributable to increase in per acre yield of
sugarcane as an outcome of “Prime Minister’'s Kissan
Package” along with contributions made by the industry,
farmers and government research institutions. This vyear,
owing to better climatic conditions and crop management, a
historical highest ever production of 7.05 million tons of sugar
(CY16: 5.12 million tons) has been achieved in Pakistan,
making this country the 7th largest sugar producer in the world
and also a net exporter of the product. Accounting for
annualized domestic consumption of 5.5 million tons, the
sugar industry, by exporting the surplus stock of approximate
1.5 million tons thereto the export approval from ECC is
in-placed, has potential to earn US $ 780 million in foreign
exchange, making the country the 5th largest sugar exporter
in the World. Going forward, sugar production in Pakistan is
anticipated to remain at least at current levels and the industry
is expected to continue contributing in national exchequer
against export of sugar for years to come.

. y OPERATING PERFORMANCE
Directors’ Report 10 Iuiemris oot S
follows:
the Shareholders

Description Units FY2017 FY2016 YQY Change

Sugarcane Crushed Tons 546,857 340,519 60.60%

Sugar Produced Tons 53,972 33,205 62.54%

Sugar Recovery Percent 9.87 9.75 1.23%

e Sugar Sold - Domestic Tons 38,926 17,300 125.00%
Rs. 2,568,043,600 Sugar Sold - International Tons 3,897 15,905 (75.50%)
Sugar Sold - Total Tons 42,823 33,205 28.96%

. . Molasses Produced Tons 25,256 15,990 57.95%

Financial Molasses Recovery Percent 4.62 4.70 (1.65%)

Position

on September 30, 2017
During the crushing season 2016-17 the mills were operated

for 130 days compared to 95 days last crushing year. The
6 Non Gurrent Liabilties Company has produced 53,972 tons (FY2016: 33,205 tons) of

Rs. 528,427,449 white sugar at improved recovery rate of 9.87 percent
(FY2016: 9.75 percent) by crushing 546,857 tons (FY2016:
340,519 tons) of sugarcane during the current year. The
Company has sold 79.34 percent (FY2016: 100 percent) of its
sugar production before the closure of this financial year,
including export of 7.22 percent (FY2016: 47.90 percent),of
sugar produced, to international customers in CIS and
11% Current Assets Afghanistan.

89% Non Current Assets

™2 | Jauharabad Sugar Mils Limited
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE percent of gross profits [FY2016: 9.86 percent], 7.12 percent

The financial performance of your Company for fiscal year
2016-17 compared to last year is presented as follows:

operating profits [FY2016: 5.57 percent] and 1.23 percent
profit after taxation [FY2016: 5.04 percent]. Total
comprehensive income for the period is Rs. 62.899 million

Description FY2017 FY2016 YOY Change
Sales - Net 2,581,987 2,094,651 23.27%
Cost of Sales 2,281,868 1,888,218 20.85%
Gross Profit 300,119 206,433 45.38%
Selling and Distribution Expenses 9,035 7,292 23.90%
Administrative and General Expenses 107,249 82,441 30.09%
Operating Profit 183,835 116,700 57.53%
Other Operating Income (5,098) (18,962) (73.11%)
Financial Cost 124,442 53,626 132.05%
Profit Before Tax 64,492 82,035 (21.39%)
Taxation 32,636 (23,961) (236.20%)
Profit After Tax 31,856 105,997 (69.95%)
Earning Per Share (Rs./Share) 1.87 6.21 (69.89%)

This year the Company has managed to increase domestic
sales by 38.42 percent over last year and has planned to
carry-forward sugar stocks at 20.66 percent (FY2016: Nil) of
total production. Despite this fact, increase of Rs. 485.624
million (FY2016: 641.259 million) to revenue is recorded,
reflecting topline growth of 23.17 percent (FY2016: 44.07
percent). Corresponding expenses have been abridged by
optimum utilization of available resources resulting in 11.62

[FY2016: Rs. 132.354 million]. Financial performance has
resulted in earning of Rs. 1.87 per share, as compared to EPS
of Rs. 6.21, earned in last financial year. Market scenarios,
currently prevailing in the industry, and adverse impact of
government policies especially delay in export approval, are
the key factors contributing 69.95 percent decline in bottom
line of the Company’s financial performance.

Profitability Performance
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

In lined with corporate strategy of diversification, in order to
mitigate revenue risk from single product, after successfully
consolidating sugar mills operations, the Company has opted
to install biomass (bagasse) based 15MW, Co-generation
Power Plant under Captive Power Plant regime with upfront
determined tariff, to export 8-10 MW electricity to FESCO.
Initially the project was conceived to be installed within two
years i.e. by FY 2018-19, using the Company’s own cash
flows and resources. Keeping in view the advantageous
position of pursuing multi income stream strategy, project
ROE and a good payback period for the power plant, the
Company, with the financial support from financial institutions,
has decided commencement of power plant by June,
2018.The Company’s free cash flow generating ability would
continue to support investments in envisaged projects, under
its next five years diversification strategy program, that shall
bring in further operational efficiencies and enhance
shareholders’ value in future.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION

Taking into account planned future investments, financial
commitments and capital expenditure plans; the board
proposed cash dividend of PKR 1/- per share for the financial
year ended September 30, 2017 balance amount is retained
by the Company for future expansions.

This approach remains in line with our Company’s
commitment to consistently provide sustainable returns to all
the shareholders. Movement in un-appropriated profit is as
follows:

Rs. in “000”
Net profit for the year 62,898,749
Un-appropriated profits of prior years 22,303,496
Net profit available for appropriation 85,202,245
Appropriations
Proposed cash dividend @ 10% 24,730,764
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 60,471,481
Earnings per share 1.93

HOLDING COMPANY
Cane Processing (Pvt.) Ltd., incorporated in Pakistan, is the
holding company of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited with
63.64 percent shares.

AUDITORS REPORT

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
without qualification by the auditors of the Company and is
authorized for issue to its shareholders.

AUDITORS
The present external auditors of the Company M/s. UHY
Hassan Naeem & Co., Chartered Accountants audited the

financial statements of the Company and have issued a report
to the members. The auditors will retire at the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered
themselves for re-appointment. The Board has recommended
the appointment of M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co., Chartered
Accountants as auditors for the ensuing year, as suggested by
the Audit Committee, subject to the approval of the members
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

VISION, MISSION AND OVERALL CORPORATE STRATEGY
The board of directors has carefully reviewed and approved
the vision, mission and overall corporate strategy of your
Company and believes that it comprehensively states the
ideology with which Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited was
incorporated. We ensure that our vision and mission set the
direction for our overall corporate strategy and our future
journey in everything we do at all levels. The entire organization
is connected and driven by this purpose and it serves as the
main decision making criterion in our day to day business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The management of the Company is committed to good
corporate governance and compliance with its best practices.
As envisaged under Code of Corporate Governance rules of
Pakistan Stock Exchange and steps are being taken for its
effective implementation. Directors of the Company are
pleased to state that:

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements, prepared by the company, fairly
present its state of affairs, the result of operations, cash flow
and changes in equity.

BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS

The Company has maintained proper books of accounts for
the current year and the previous years as required by the
applicable laws.

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Appropriate accounting policy has been constantly applied in
preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements to ensure the true and fair view of the Company’s
financial position.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been

5| Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
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effectively implemented and is being monitored continuously.
The process of review will continue by the audit committee to
monitor the effective implementation and future improvement
in controls.

GOING CONCERN
There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key operating and financial data for the last seven years is
included on page No.45.

STATEMENT ON VALUE OF STAFF RETIREMENT FUNDS
The fair value of investments of provident fund based on its
unaudited accounts as of September 30, 2017 is Rs. 24.05
million [FY16: Rs. 20.535 million].

There has been no material departure from the Best Practices
of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Listing Regula-
tions of Pakistan Stock Exchange wherever applicable to the
Company for the year ended September 30, 2017.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEAURES
The Company, through its training, management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and construc-
tive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations. Employees are encouraged to
report any deal that may be supported by suspicious transac-
tions. No employee is allowed to run a parallel business.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

In order to ensure transparency, good governance and
smooth functioning of the Company’s operation, the
Company has implemented the regulatory framework in terms
of qualification, experience and composition of the Board of
Directors as well as awareness of the Board responsibilities.
The Board comprises 7 directors effectively representing
shareholders’ interests. All directors are qualified and
experienced, which enables the Board to carry out effective
and efficient decision making. During the financial year
2016-17, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held,the
attendance by each director was a under

Sr.  Director Category /l&/lt?eert]lggg
1 Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan Chief Executive/Executive Director 5/5
2 Mr. Atif Zaheer Farooqi Independent Director 1/5
3 Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain  Independent/Non-Executive Director 5/5
4 Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab Dependent/Non-Executive Director 2/5
5 Mr. Shahrukh Taimour Dependent/Non-Executive Director 2/5
6 Mr. Farhan llyas Dependent/Non-Executive Director 2/5
7 Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg Dependent/Non-Executive Director 4/5
8  Mr. Jamal Ahmed Dependent/Non-Executive Director 5/5

There casual vacancy in the Board of Directors during the year
was duly filed in by the Company before the expiry of 90 days
period. The Directors who could not attend the Board Meeting
and requested for leave were duly granted leave for absence
from the meeting by the Board in accordance with the law.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors in compliance to the Code of Corporate
Governance has established an Audit Committee. During the
financial year 2016-17, four Meetings of the Audit Committee
were held. The attendance by each member was as under:

Sr.  Name Status No. of Meetings

Attended

1 Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain Chairman 4/4
2 Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg Member 2/4
3 Mr. Shahrukh Taimor Member 2/4
4 Mr. Farhan llyas Member 2/4
5  Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan Member 2/4

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors in compliance to the Code of
Corporate Governance has established an HR & R Committee.
During the financial year 2015-16, one Meeting of the HR & R
Committee was held. The attendance by each member was as
under:

Sr. Name Status No. of Meetings
Attended

1 Mr. Farhan llyas Chairman 1

2 Mr. Jamal Ahmed Member 11

3 Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan Member 11

FORMAL ORIENTATION AT INDUCTION AND DIRECTOR’S
TRAINING PROGRAM

Directors of listed companies and public-sector companies
are required to secure formal certification in the form of
Directors’ Training Program (DTP). The Director Training
Program offered by Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMA), Lahore, is an approved
program by the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP). In this financial year following four Directors’
actively participated in this program:

i. Ghias Ul Hasan

i. Amijad Bashir Hussain

ii. Muhammad Aamir Beg

iv. Jamal Ahmad

In accordance with the criteria specified in clause (xi) of the
Code, the above listed Directors’ have successfully completed
the “Directors’ Training Program” during the year under
review. This program provides guidance on targeted areas to
ensure that Directors of listed companies with specific require-
ments remain up to date. This program is extensively prepared
by subject matter experts and is designed to keep Directors of
listed companies abreast of leading trends and practices that
promote good governance, protect competitive advantages
and prepare for regulatory change.

QUALIFICATION OF CFO AND HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT
The Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit
possess the requisite qualifications and experience as
prescribed in the code of Corporate Governance.

TRANSACTION/TRADING IN COMPANY’S SHARES

The Board has reviewed the threshold for disclosure on
interest by executives holding of Company’s shares which
include CEO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Company
Secretary. However, during the financial year, none of the
Directors, CEO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Company
Secretary (Including their spouses and minor children) traded
in the shares of the Company.

PATERN OF SHARE HOLDING

Pattern of Shareholding of the Company in accordance with
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Code of Corporate
Governance as at September 30, 2017 is annexed.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Disclosure as required by the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) General Order, 2009 is annexed and form a
part of this report.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

JSML contributed approximately Rs.259.8 million into the
Government Treasury on account of Income tax, excise
duty, sales tax and other government levies. Apart from this,
valuable foreign exchange to the tune of USD 2 million was
generated by our Company for the country from export of
sugar during the year under review.

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY DUES

The outstanding statutory dues on the account of taxes, duties
and charges are disclosed on the face of balance sheet and in
Note 15 to the financial statements. There is no overdue
amount on account of taxes and duties.

APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors of the Company take this opportunity to express
their sincere gratitude for all the stakeholders for their
continued encouragement and support. We would like to
place on record our sincere appreciation for the commitment,
dedication and hard work put in by every member, who have
always shown their confidence and faith in the Company.

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company have occurred between the end of
the financial year to which this balance sheet relates and the
date of the Directors report.

@M fs

On Behalf of the Board
Ghias Ul Hasan
Chief Executive

Lahore: December 29, 2017
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88.38% Cost of Sales

0.35% Distribution Expenses

o . Rs. 9,034,707
Financial

Performance
by September 30, 2017

3.96% Admini Expenses
Rs. 102,150,833

4.82% Financial Expenses
Rs. 124,441,520

1.26% Taxation
Rs. 32,636,276

1.23% Net Profit
Rs. 31,855,699



Quiality Assurance Policy

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is focused to produce high quality grade sugar by the

implementation of comprehensive integrated Quality and Food Safety Management
System. Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, with the new sugarcane varieties being

introduced by the Government Research Institutions, is committed to work tirelessl
to change agronomical practices of the farmers in the Khushab region. T
Company’s Cane Research and Development Department, as per develope
farmer’s guidelines on harvesting practices to enhance cane yield and reduce| cane
loss, periodically conducts seminars, with the help of Government Researc
Institutions, fertilizer and pesticides companies, to educate farmers as how to adc
latest harvesting techniques including pit farming. In order to achieve sustainakii it
particular crop variety, by non-applying avoidable pesticides, The Comp
Bio-Laboratory provides Trachogama Cards to the farmers to avert pest att
regular basis our Cane Team in the area of Quality Control and Assurance fo
the quality of sugarcane during crop season, emphasis to reduce field to
after harvesting and assure testing of sugarcane against each arrival in
Cane Laboratory. Moreover, quality assurance monitors the entire opere
through process parameters and product attributes, focused on
validations, handling customer complaint and investigating all devi
coordination of main laboratory, process and mill house. During the
monitoring and testing process of sugar, takes place acco
Laboratory Practices (GLP) guidelines aligned with High qualit
set by Pakistan Standard and Quality Control Authority (PSQX(




Conflict of Interest Policy

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited realizes the importance of conducting business with
honestly, transparency and with good corporate governance. Therefore, the Compa-
ny has hooked its responsibility and set up a Conflict of Interest Policy to restrict
directors and employees from the Company matters where they have any interest,
pecuniary or otherwise. It applies to all prospective and current employees of the
Company, as well as independent contractors and persons acting on behalf of the
Company.The directors of the Company strongly believe in the duty of confidentiality
(locked insider information), duty of loyalty (putting board responsibilities above other
outside interests) and fiduciary duties for financial and legal matters. The interest
policy at Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited restrict board members from participating in
discussion, reporting or voting on an issue in which he is by any way interested,
except in case where his interest is solely being the director of the Company, the
directors of the Company are bound not to trade in the shares of the Company,
further they should report any trade in shares by any of his dependent or associate
concerns which come into his knowledge.

% | Jauharabad Su







IT Governance Policy

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is constantly focusing on the
improvement of Information Technology system within organization. IT
Governance process helps to align technology and system upgradation
with the business requirements, smoothening the decision-making
process used to define actions for achieving strategic goals of the
Company. Effective implementation of integrated management
information system has resulted in efficient handling of bulk data related to
crushing seasons, identification of potential suppliers and areas. Currently
System Analysis and Resource Planning (SARP) software especially
designed for sugar sector industry has been implemented within the
Company. IT governance policy of the Company is mainly charged of;

Vision: This activity determines the overall governance structure for IT
and creates decision-making power and accountability through
Knowledge management system.

Aligning: This activity will determine the suitability of the fit between
overall governance for the Company and IT governance specifically.

Identifying regulations and standards: Industry-specific regulatory
requirements and standards play a critical role in gauging the exactness
and rigor required for IT governance. These factors are being adhered and
thus providing a competitive advantage to the Company in its area of
operations.

Creating policy: Getting right policy helps to drive performance that
delivers results based on expected behaviors and appropriate resources
used.
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Safety of Records Policy

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited owing corporate requirements relating to
day-to-day business operations and administrative controls, generate
increasing volumes of records, is efficiently and effectively implementing the
policy to create, manage, retain, safety and disposal of such records,
according to timeframe as required under the provision of section 230 of the
Companies Ordinance 1984. Without effective policy, protocols addressing
aspects i) what records to keep; ii) where to keep records; iii) who should
keep records and; iv) when to keep, records have potential to expose the
Company to risks including penalties and legal repercussions. The Company
has designed a comprehensive record management policy, having clear
objectives of Governance Transparency, Data Protection, Regulatory
Compliance and Cost Reduction, emphasize to;

a) enable staff to perform consistently in full knowledge of processes,
decisions and actions that inform and drive the business; _'
b)  provide freedom of information service throughout the Company to
promote collegiality and knowledge sharing; P
c) ensure the availability of credible and authoritative evidence t
protect the rights of the Company, its staff and anyone else affecte
by its activities;
d) ensure the ownership of record by the Company, not b :
individual or team; =
e) provide corporate memory so that lapse of time does not a
access to and availability of the corporate knowledge resource
f) ~ demonstrate accountability by providing the evidence
information required for any possible internal or external auc i d
g) ensure record will be held only as long as requirec
in accordance with the record management policy.

osed-off




Disaster Recovery Plan

The Company’s disaster recovery plan, developed to ensure the continuation of business process in
the event that a disaster occurs, provides an effective solution that can be used to recover and to
handle any emergency situation. The management system is an ongoing process of planning
developing, testing and implementing disaster recovery management procedure to ensure effective
and efficient resumption of process in the event of unaccepted interruption. Disaster recovery plan of
the Company consist of three phases which are undertaken in parallel following the disaster;

Disaster Containment Assess how the disaster affect the production plan and to derive, the resulting
production, the crises plan to cover the crises period in an optimal way.

Disaster Turn Around Develop a comprehensive analysis of all possible scenarios and outcome and to
take a decision on the path forward and build the corresponding transformation plan Insurance Claim
Management on board the insurer on containment and turnaround decision to prepare the business
interruption claim.

Disaster recovery strategy ensures that every reasonable measure has been taken to identify and
mitigate potential risk that exit within processing environment.Though the most successful disaster
recovery strategy is one that will never be implemented; therefore, risk avoidance is a critical element
in the disaster plan. Dynamic planning, communication and risk management, opted by the Company;,
allow it to handle the most critical aspect of the recovery plan smoothly

e Business continuity in the production of the Company

Understanding from workers with positive neutrality regarding the shutdown process

e Protection of the Company brand image in the market

e Early warnings sent to the board/corporate office, when necessary

e Prepare crises management team to respond effectively in a crises situation

® Manage crises in an organized and effective manner

e | imit the magnitude of crises situation to the other area of operation

e Arrange training program for the personnel directly involved in the execution of recovery plan

@ ‘ Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited



Whistle Blower Policy

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, aligned with its core values
specially honesty and integrity, expects all team members to
maintain high standards in accordance with the Company’s policies
and standard operating procedures. In order to prevent the risk of
things going wrong or unethical at any time, the Company is
interested to have culture of openness and accountability, a
comprehensive policy of whistleblowing is in-placed.

The Company’s whistle blowing policy encourages all the team
members to report suspected wrongdoing, may include breach of
the Company’s policies and procedures, breach of legal
requirement, general malpractice, gross misconduct, breach of
audit regulations, unethical, immoral behavior victimization. The
policy not only provides guideline to raise such concerns but also
ensures protected disclosures and confidentiality. The policy
emphasizes that such concerns should be raised without fear of
reprisals, even if they turn out to be mistaken and shall be fairly
dealt in appropriate prescribed manner. Scope of policy is restricted
to address the concerns in relation to money laundering, bribery,
harassment, budget grievance or disciplinary proceeding.
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Occupational Health and
Safety Management

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is committed to achieve excellence in
occupational safety, health and environmental protection. Ensuring health and
safety requires both the management and employees to be actively involved and
committed to health and safety policy. Jauharabad Sugar Mils Limited
encourages the employees to have a better communication about safe practices
with higher level administrators to better assimilate the safety, health and
environmental policy of the Company. Due to this, positive impact has been
registered by the Company in terms of number of incidents per machine-hours.
Our goal in respect of safety, health and environment is to minimize all adverse
environmental and health impact arising out of our operations and to conserve all
kind of resources and adhere to all legal regulations.

The Company is continuously striving to minimize accidental risks associated
with the industry by providing safety equipment, fire management tools and air
emission monitoring. To make it more convenient for the low-level employees to
understand, the Company through presentations ensures that everyone is
well-aware of risks associated to machinery and usage of protection equipment.
Apart from this, even vernacular language is recommended in order to have a
better understanding of safety measures and signs. Management has taken all
possible measures and methods to establish priorities and objectives for
eliminating hazards and reducing risks factors.

Maintenance of health and safety standards at our mills and offices is our top
priority. The Company is committed to actively manage health and safety risks
associated with our business and is actively working towards improving our
procedures to reduce, remove or control the risk of fire, accidents or injuries to
employees and visitors. The Company strives to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for its employees and to act responsibly towards the communities
and environment, in which it operates. It realizes this through the commitment of
its leadership, the dedication of its staff, and application of the highest
professional standards of work. Management takes all possible measures to
prevent unsafe activities by its hiring practices and through the implementation
of effective management, human resources and operational policies.
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Performance Managemen

The Company is committed to build strong corporate culture that is shaped by
motivated team who demonstrate deep belief in Company’s vision and values.
Success of the Company undoubtedly lies in the tired-less efforts of its human
resources. The Company has developed a performance review process, based on
following objectives, in order to recognize employees’ contributions and right
compensation.

e Giving a sense of direction and challenge to the individuals and their team
through role clarity.

* Helping different functions and departments to go beyond targets and
benchmarks and take quantum jumps.

e Creating a supportive and empowering culture in the organization.,

* |dentify talent for succession planning.

e |dentifying employees with long term growth potential.

e |dentifying employees performing below expectation and what inputs are
required to improve their performance.

e To ensuring growth of employees for organizational perpetuity.

e  Creating total quality environment by enhancing the commitment of people
in terms of productivity, quality, technology, structure and systems.

& ‘ Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited



Environmental Protection Measures
The Company provides a workplace which is safe and
secure for its employees keeping in mind a healthy and
friendly environment. The Company aligned with its tree
plantation program, has launched tree plantation
Campaign 2017 in association with the Government
officials and prominent public figures of district Khushab.
Under this Campaign the Company remained successful
to plant 750 trees within its surrounding areas and green
belts around the road leading to Sugar Mills and has spent
approximately Rs. 0.671 Million during this financial year.

Corporate Benevolence

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is striving
hard to maintain a friendly and social
environment among its employees. The
Company introduces and reconsiders the
policies, periodically, which help to
maintain a strong positive correlation
between financial performance and
corporate  social responsibility. The
Company is constantly looking for ways
to extend a helping hand towards the
society and for this CSR Committee has
been constituted, comprising three
members chaired by GM (Operations),
scheduled to meet quarterly to review the
progress of CSR program. This year four
meetings were held and the committee is
satisfied with the performance of “CSR
Program-2017".

Contribution to National Exchequer
During the year, the Company has
contributed an amount of Rs. 344.385
million toward national exchequer in
shape of taxes, duties, cess etc. The
Company has also contributed through
earning of valuable foreign exchange
amounting to US$ 2.009 million
through export of refine sugar.

= =
Sports Activities
To have a healthy and well-balanced life, sports is a necessity.
Company maintained tennis court, football and cricket grounds
are available to conduct periodic tournaments for the healthy
completion by and between employees of the mills and local
sport associations.

Q ‘ Annual Report 2017
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Rural Health & Development Support Program
The Company periodically invests and conducts seminars in creating
awareness relating to several health issues among the local community,
in conjunction with the local THQ. The Company under its rural health
development program has provided 10 beds to local administration of
THQ. The Company has successfully launched blood donation
campaign in April 2017 and conducted dengue awareness walk from
Mills to Civil lines for the awareness of the surrounding community in
July 2017. A 24/7 stand by ambulance service is available with the
Company to cater any emergency to its employees or their families
residing in mills colonies. Further First Aid Facilities, at mills premises,
are regularly upgraded.




Business Ethics & Anti-Corruption Measures
The Company holds a strict policy in regards to business ethics and

practices, in line with its code of conduct. The Company also holds a

zero tolerance policy on corruption thereto internal audit team
constantly keeps a check for the implementation of standard and
procedure. However, employees are not allowed to run a parallel
business activity.

Integrated PEST Management
Jauharabad Sugar Mils Limited is
committed to improve varietal mix of
cane in Khushab region and is
propagating superior varieties as
recommended by Government research
institutions. Particular efforts are being
made to educate farmers as how-to a)

Growers’ Financial & Technical Support
Growers’ financial support policy is designed to support deserving
farmers by providing them interest free loans in the form of cash or
fertilizers, pesticides, cane seeds or any other allied product, without
any collateral. This year the Company has distributed loans
amounting to Rs.14.97 Million, out of its own cash flows, to raise the
agronomical practices of the growers. The Company in recognition of
this potential has ensured timely cane payments to the growers,
within a week of closing the crushing season.

The Company is also providing technical support to growers through
our professional team consisting of social organizer, qualified officers
for demonstrations and research work thus playing its part to
enhance capacity building of local community which in turn leads to
eliminating poverty in the region. Further, our team conducts
periodical visits to the farms in order to assess the growth and health
of crop and advise accordingly to the growers which contributes vital
role in getting high crops yields per acre.

Community Investments

Providing quality education has always been the top most priority at
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited as it is one of the most powerful and
proven vehicles for sustainable development. In order to fulfill this goal,
the Company is running a “Girls Higher Secondary School, Jauharabad”
for employees’ children. However, to facilitate and motivate the talented
students; scholarships are being provided to them. Apart from this,
different school activities such as Prize Distribution Ceremony, Parents
day, Naat & Speech competition and Farewell Party is being conducted
occasionally to develop the intellectual abilities of students. As a result,
the drop-out ratio has been reduced and a sharp increasing enrollment
rate for students has been observed in comparison to last year.

use 4” ridger, b) increase seed rate and

C) incorporate pit farming techniques.
The Company has developed an
effective mechanism to avert the pest
attack in its area of procurement by in
house production of “good worms”
attached to TRACHOGAMA cards.
These cards are being distributed to the
growers at subsidized rates. Moreover,
the Company is also working in close
coordination with its farmer community
and is regularly creating awareness
through “PEST warning and control
system”.

R ¥
Consumer Protection Measures

—

0,

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, having its premium brand “KOHINOOR SUGAR”, maintains a
fine quality of sugar which qualifies standards set by “Pakistan Standard and Quality Control
Authority”. The color of our sugar is sparkling white which is considered as the best quality
product in the market.

% | Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited




Umrah/Hajj
Scholarships

Religious duties are
important to be fulfiled to
have a prosperous life. This
year, under Umrah/Hajj
scholarship scheme, the
Company has sponsored
four employees, chosen
through balloting, to
perform Umrah.

National Cause Donations

The Company is always looking forward to make a
significant contribution in our society either during national
disaster or regular donations. Welfare initiations such as
LABARD, JAZBA Welfare Foundation, LRBT are
prominent welfares for donations. These donations were
made as part of the Company’s continuing welfare
activities including but not limited to provide medical
assistance, education for all and supply of basic
equipment’s to support cottage industry. The Company
through the donation has distributed machines and
equipment to 48 deserving women who are already
engaged in small enterprises and hopeful that with this
support these families will be able to enhance their income
and support their families.

Employment of Disabled Persons
The Company intends to hire disabled
people as per the requirement of
“Employment & Rehabilitation
Ordinance 1981”. This helps to inspire
special persons to support their
families and provide them with basic
necessities of life.

Industrial Relations of Employees

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited is dedicated to provide equal
opportunity to all the employees irrespective of any
discrimination on the basis of religion, gender, age, caste and
race. Uncontaminated and pure drinking water plant has been
installed at the Mill. Yearly bonuses are being paid out to
employees depending on the Company’s profitability and g
performance. The Company aims to give generous retirement |
package at the age of superannuation as well as Worker’s §
Profit Participation Fund for its employees.

.

Fair Price Supply of
Basic Necessities

A fair price shop is being
maintained at the mill
which helps to ease the
employees and their
families with basic
necessities at subsidized
' rates.
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Environmental Responsibility

To enhance environmental standards and continuously promoting a better and Green
Environment within the factory as well in the nearby areas. The Company is arranging
regular Tree Plantation at different locations within factory premises and nearby areas to
provide a healthy environment to employees and other communities living in its
surroundings. This activity will continue in the future and more trees will be planted to
ensure healthy and green environment, in order to achieve scope of environmental policy;

e Ensure our products, operations and services comply with relevant environmental
legislation and regulations.

e Maintain and continously improve our environmental management systems or more
stringent requirements as dictated by specific markets or local regulations.

e QOperate in a manner that is committed to continuous improvement in environmental
sustainability through recycling, conservation of resources, prevention of pollution,
product development and promotion of environmental responsibility amongst our
employees.

e Responsibly managing use of hazardous materials in our operations, products and
services and promote recycling or reuse of our products.

e |nform suppliers, including contractors, of our environmental expectations and
require them to adopt environmental management practices aligned with these
expectations.

Efforts to Mitigate the Adverse Impact of Industrial Effluent/\Wastes.

The Company follows the standard for disposal of liquid effluents as per the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) guidelines. The only hard form of waste extracted
while purification of sugar called Mud which is environmental friendly and is used as a
fertilizer in farms. The Company is also investing heavily on tree plantation to reduce the
environmental impact to build greener and healthier surroundings.

._‘*
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Quarterly Performance Analysis

(Rupees in '000)

Particulars 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr Total
Turnover - net 61,035 526,594 758,706 1,235,652 2,581,987
Cost of sales (7,497) (469,427) (684,791) (1,120,153) (2,281,868)
Gross profit 53,538 57,167 73,915 115,499 300,119
Distribution cost (1,291) (1,948) (1,222) (4,574) (9,035)
Administrative expenses (26,155) (21,510) (20,334) (89,250) (107,249)
Other expenses - - - - -
(27,446) (23,458) (21,556) (43,824) (116,284)
Operating profit 26,092 33,709 52,359 71,675 183,835
Other income 143 3,374 11 1,570 5,098
Financial cost (6,477) (31,346) (44,714) (41,905) (124,442)
Profit before taxation 19,758 5,737 7,656 31,340 64,491
Taxation (3,359) (2,517) 4,190 (80,950) (32,636)
Profit after taxation 16,399 3,220 11,846 390 31,855
Financial Expenses Sales Revenue
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Seven Years at a Glance

Financial Data

FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY2011
Balance Sheet
Non current assets 2,786,497 2,198,258 2,291,818 2,245,685 2,451,256 1,664,123
Current assets 441,667 551,977 305,022 705,734 586,950 827,053
Current liabilities 214,364 485,282 299,957 655,619 1,185,667 1,100,122
Non current liabilities 365,348 286,474 341,030 1,186,366 813,577 844,391
Shareholders equity 2,648,452 1,978,479 1,955,858 1,109,433 1,038,961 546,663
Profit & Loss Account
Sales - net 2,094,651 1,455,105 1,744,056 1,143,758 1,968,708 1,640,935
Gross profit 206,433 105,330  (156,073) (842,222) (96,364) 141,704
EBITDA 224,214 120,231 18,802 541,440 (154,502) 116,378
2 EBIT 135,662 58,162 (41,221) 479,930 (181,199) 68,090
§ Profit before tax 82,036 7,151 (77,185) 434,804 (276,430) (44,568)
é Profit after tax 105,997 5,121 (38,891) 295,843 (197,597) (51,808)
=
@ Cash Flows
0% Cash flows from operations 82,036 7,151 (77,185) 434,804 (276,430) (44,568)
~  Operating activities 41,991 (72,505) (77,678) (562,892) 297,633 (834,324)
Investing activities (106,439) (92,145) (61,285) 88,209 (13,170) 4,722
Financing activities 49,723 191,568 141,406 473,964 (283,763) 331,862
Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year 34,263 7,346 4,902 5,621 4,921 2,661
Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 19,538 34,263 7,346 4,902 5,621 4,921
Operating Data
FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY2011
Operating days Days 95 93 95 97 99 114
Cane crushed Tons 340,519 252,995 281,997 321,022 427,690 406,388
Sugar produced Tons 33,205 24,492 25,975 26,420 35,646 30,673
Sugar recovery %age 9.75 9.68 9.22 8.23 8.33 7.55
Molasses produced Tons 15,990 11,292 12,915 15,048 21,271 20,629
Molasses recovery ~ %age 4.70 4.46 4.58 4.69 4.97 5.08
Bagasse produced Tons 102,158 76,075 87,165 99,966 122,747 125,655
V.F. Cake produced Tons 10,215 7,590 8,460 9,631 12,831 12,192




Seven Years at a Glance

Financial Ratios

FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY2011
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit to sales 11.62% 9.86% 7.24% -8.95% -29.92% -4.91% 8.64%
Net profit after tax to sales 1.23% 5.06% 0.35% -2.23% 25.87% -10.06% -3.16%
EBITDA to sales 11.32% 10.70% 8.26% 1.08% 47.34% -7.87% 7.09%
Return on Equity 1.24% 4.00% 0.26% -1.99% 26.67% -19.02% -9.48%
Return on Capital Employed 7.35% 5.12% 2.94% -2.11% 43.26% -17.44% 12.46%
Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio 1.01 2.06 1.14 1.02 1.08 0.50 0.75
Quick ratio 0.34 1.92 1.02 0.88 0.41 0.23 0.23
Cash to current liabilities 3.27% 9.11% 7.06% 2.45% 0.75% 0.47% 0.45%
Cash flow from
operations to sales 2.50% 3.92% 0.49% -4.43% 38.02% -14.08% -2.72%
Activity Ratios
Inventory turnover 7.78 42.19 27.06 7.93 3.93 4.61 4.27
No. of days in Inventory 46.93 8.65 13.49 46.04 92.79 79.22 85.41
Debtor turnover 3,779.39 35.95 16.13 54.54 100.05 165.39 61.54
No. of days in Receivables 0.10 10.15 22.63 6.69 3.65 2.21 5.93
Creditor turnover 7.67 8.14 513 4.81 2.50 4.10 5.02
No. of days in Payables 47.59 44.82 71.15 75.84 145.88 89.09 72.68
Operating Cycle (0.56) (26.02) (35.03) (23.11) (49.44) (7.67) 18.66
Total assets turnover 0.72 0.70 0.54 0.63 0.38 0.71 0.72
Fixed assets turnover 0.88 0.84 0.65 0.77 0.49 0.95 0.99
Investment Valuation Ratios
Earnings per share 1.87 6.21 0.47 (3.56) 2712 (18.11) (4.75)
Price Earning ratio 26.48 9.02 36.22 (2.84) 0.38 (0.29) (0.82)
Dividend Yield 2.02% 1.79% - - - - -
Dividend Payout ratio 53.48% 16.10% - - - - -
Dividend Cover ratio 1.29 9.72 - - - - -
Cash Dividend per share 10.00% 10.00% - - - - -
Market value per share 49.51 56.00 17.00 10.13 10.25 5.22 3.90
Break value per share 49.90 117.53 32.18 81.43 1.93 (27.43) (9.32)
Capital Structure Ratios
Debt to equity ratio 1.58 1.22 1.39 1.33 2.66 2.92 4.56
Interest coverage ratio 1.52 2.53 1.14 (1.15) 10.64 (1.90) 0.60

& ‘ Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
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Statement of Value Addition and
Distribution of Wealth

2017 2016
Rs. %age Rs. %age
Wealth Generated
Gross sales to customers 2,841,786,724 99.8% 2,188,080,419 99.1%
Add: Other income and finance income 5,098,009 0.2% 18,961,537 0.9%
Total value added 2,846,884,733 100.0% 2,207,041,956 100.0%

Distribution of Wealth

m Cost of sales (excluding employees' remuneration) 2,095,168,783 74.6%
m Salaries paid to employees 182,829,369 6.5%
B Marketing, selling and administrative expenses 110,701,716 3.9%
B Government as levies 259,799,310 9.3%
m Shareholder as dividends 24,730,764 0.9%
¥ Finance cost 124,320,389 4.4%
= Workers’ welfare 7,773,436 0.3%
¥ Charity and donation 1,678,624 0.1%
Providers of long term finance as financial charges 121,131 0.0%

2,807,123,522

Retained within the business 39,761,211

Distribution of Wealth

m Cost of sales (excluding employees' remuneration) 1,745,542,774 81.7%
m Salaries paid to employees 139,563,017 6.5%
B Marketing, selling and administrative expenses 86,861,699 4.1%
® Government as levies 93,428,937 4.4%
m Shareholder as dividends 10,909,797 0.5%
¥ Finance cost 52,243,535 2.4%
= Workers’ welfare 5,638,544 0.3%
® Charity and donation 444,500 0.0%
Providers of long term finance as financial charges 1,382,830 0.1%

2,135,915,633

Retained within the business 71,126,323

& | Annual Report 2017




ROE = Net
profit/Equity
8.23%

Return on Assets
3.28

Equity Multiplier
2.52

Asset Turnover

Sales N Total Assets
2,094,651,482 3,228,164,009

Current Assets
441,667,148

Long-Term Assets
2,786,496,861

Profit Margin

Net Profit
105,997,346

Sales
2,094,651,482

& | Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited



Risk and Opportunities Report

The Board of directors of the Company is principally committed to identify and to mitigate all such business risks, well in time
by utilizing optimum potential effort. Sugar Industry is carrying significant risk factors that may materially affect the
Company’s operations, earnings, cash flows and overall performance. Hence the Management strives to take all the
measures necessary to mitigate and manage the risks while at the same time avail all the opportunities for growth as and
when they occur. This principle keeps the Company within its risk appetite and helps to achieve its corporate objectives.

Risks
As with sugar industry, the Company is susceptible to various risks.However, through comprehensive planning
and an acute business understanding of the management, the Company continues to identify and mitigate risks.
The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits and
accountabilities, well implemented policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes.Moreover, the
Audit Committee is responsible for Internal Controls in the Company. Following are the major risks which may
affect our business operations and mitigating strategies for controlling these risks:

e Low Productivity /Recovery from sugarcane in the area and replac ement of Sugarcane with other crops and
orchards.

e Low Crushing capacity of the Company ultimately effecting economies of scale and competitiveness of product.
e Uncertain security situation at places where the Company opgi ing interests can adversely affect

the Company’s operations. /’....
¢ Natural disasters and extreme weather conditions _S#i€ not only seriously

impact the ongoing operations, these also t 1 " equipment and
installations. f :

e Any delay default in settlement of Company’s
situation.

e Political uncertainty and impact of policie
authorities.

¢ Risk of increase in the cost of borrowing ma

avenues for availability of sufficient working ca

Opportunities

The Board of Directors of the Company alAfocuses to capitalize management’s experience and to strategize
operations of the Company in line with the Company’s stated vision. It also concentrates to utilize existing and
potential opportunities confronted by the Company. This has resulted in the decision of expanding the operations
of the Company through installation of Power project.

Unlocking and exploiting operational opportunities is an important aspect of the management’s entrepreneurial
activities. The company is committed to use existing products and new solutions in order to systematically
enhance bottom line growth and strengthen our position in local and international markets. Investing in new
projects and increasing the productivity of existing ones are key elements for future organic growth. In the year
under review, we strengthened the basis for further growth in the coming years by making selective investment in
power business. Following are major opportunities available with the Company that may support in achievement
of the Company’s stated vision.

e Availability of ample irrigated area in the Khushab District to promote sugarcane crop, providing opportunity to the
Company, the only sugar mills in the District, to propagate only those varieties having higher recovery potential.

e The Company is focused to continuously improve skills of the management team through dedicated courses and
trainings

e The Company is having low gearing ratio. Hence, retention power of the Company has increased many folds, with
the support of financial institutions and now the Company can hold sugar to reap price variation benefits during
off-season.

e As sugar industry as now become net exporter, continuous efforts are being made to increase contribution margin
of sugar and allied products by exploring new market horizons both domestically and through exports.

e Aligned with corporate strategy, the Company has invested in power project to lower its reliance on single product.




Share Price
Sensitivity Analysis

During this financial year the Company remained successful to post net
profit amounting to Rs. 31,855,699 (FY 2016: Rs. 105,997,346) and to
enhance Price Earning to 26.48% (FY2016: 9.02%) with EPS at Rs. 1.87
(FY2016: Rs. 6.21). This year, keeping the impact of industry’s dynamics,
total volume of 960,500 number of the Company’s shares were transacted
on PSX with price variation magnitude of 123.5%, between recorded
lowest price at Rs. 47.16 (Dated: September 18, 2017) and highest price
at Rs. 96.00 (Dated: May 12, 2017). Factors that contribute to the
performance of the Company which in turn reinforce the investor’s
confidence and interest in the Company include:

Cane Support Price

Sugarcane support price, under the mandate of the Laws of State, is
prerogative right with the provincial governments. Any change to the
support price, without consulting or securing risks to all stakeholders,
disparity in inter-provincial support price of the crop, is directly attributable
to the Company’s performance.

Law and Order Situation

Company’s performance is directly influenced by unfortunate prevailing
law and order situation in the Country. Political un-stability, transportation
strikes, sit-in protests and hindrance in supply chain negatively affect the
Company’s operations.

Regulations and Government Policies

Share price of the Company is also sensitive to the changes in policies by
the government or byany regulatory authorities, positively or negatively,
depending on whether the policy is in favor of or against the industry.
Overall performance of the Country’s economy under local or global
challenges will affect PSX index and ultimately to the share price.

Plant Operations

Smooth and un-interpreted operation of Mills lead to effective capacity
utilization by achieving higher volumes of production with minimum
wastage of resources. Idle resources may cause inefficiency in operations
and enhance the cost of product, adversely affecting the Company’s
performance.

Variation in Variable Cost

The Company has invested to improve varietal mix of sugarcane in its area
of operations, in order have better recovery eventually lowering the cost of
production and by rationing variable costs associates to production
Variations in these costs will negatively affect the gross margins and will
resultantly fall in the profitability and EPS of the Company.

Goodwill

The market share price can also vary with the investor sentiments towards
the Company which changes very quickly in response to the news and
events and also because of investors’ following of the general market
trend.
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Pattern of Shareholding

As on September 30, 2017

1. Incorporation Number 0002804
2. Name of the Company Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-09-2017
4. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
652 1 100 15,855
209 101 500 48,361
79 501 1,000 53,007
112 1,001 5,000 231,964
18 5,001 10,000 119,483
5 10,001 15,000 57,141
4 15,001 20,000 66,043
1 20,001 25,000 22,936
2 25,001 30,000 56,463
1 40,001 45,000 40,603
1 55,001 60,000 55,297
1 60,001 65,000 61,867
2 70,001 75,000 142,382
1 100, 001 105,000 108,040
1 165,001 170,000 167,121
1 205,001 210,000 205,519
1 430,001 435,000 431,075
1 445,001 450,000 446,374
1 470,001 475,000 470,753
1 650,001 655,000 653,625
1 785,001 790,000 788,350
1 1,160,001 1,165,000 1,164,897
1 1,625,001 1,630,000 1,638,556
1 2,055,001 2,060,000 2,055,196
1 15,630,001 15,635,000 15,634,856
1099 24,730,764
5. Categories of Shareholders Share Held Percentage
5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officers, and their spouse and minor childern 3,737 0.0555%
5.2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. 15,737,896 63.6369%
5.3 NIT and ICP 792,168 3.2032%
5.4 Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Institutions. 3,824 0.0155%
5.5 Insurance Companies 196,615 0.7950%
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds Nil Nil
5.7 Share holders holding 10% or more 15,737,896 63.6369%
5.8 General Public
a. Local 7,870,647 31.8253%
b. Foreign 500 0.0020%
5.9 Others (to be specified)
a. Investment Companies 2,881 0.0116%
b. Joint Stock Companies 17,893 0.0724%
c. Pension Funds 72,073 0.2914%
d. Government Holding 8,120 0.0328%
e. Others 11,647 0.0471%
~ 6. Signature of Company Secretary
§ 7. Name of Signatory Imran llyas
é% 8. Designation Company Secretary
] 9. NIC Number
< 10. Date
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Catagories of Shareholding Required Under
Code of Corporate Governance (CCQG)

As on September 30, 2017

Sr. No. Name No. of Shares Percentage
Held

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties:

1 Cane Processing (Pvt) Ltd. 15,737,896 63.6369%
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail): Nil Nil
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Chidren (Name Wise Detail):

1 Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab 2,737 0.0111%

2 Mr. Ghias-Ul-Hasan 5,500 0.0222%

3 Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain 2,750 0.0111%

4 Mr. Farhan llyas (CPL Nominee) 2,750 0.0111%

5 Mr. Jamal Ahmad (CPL Nominee) Nil Nil

6 Mr. Shahrukh Taimour (CPL Nominee) Nil Nil

7 Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg (CPL Nominee) Nil Nil
Executives: 431,075 1.7431%
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: Nil Nil

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds: 272,512 1.1019%

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company:

1 Cane Processing (Pvt) Ltd. 15,737,896 63.6369%
2 Mrs. Ghazala Amjad (CDC) 2,260,715 9.1413%
3 Mrs. Maryam Ahsan Magbool 1,638,556 6.6256%
4 Mrs. Isma Ahmed 1,635,650 6.6138%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their spouses and minor children
shall also be disclosed:

Sr. No. Name Sale Purchase

1 Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab NIL 2,500

Iy ‘ Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited




Statement of Compliance with
Code of Corporate Governance

for the year ended September 30, 2017

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate
Governance (CCG) Contained in Regulation No. 5.19 of listing regulations
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited(PSX) for the purpose of establishing 12
a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed
in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance. 13
The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of
following manner: shareholding.
1. The Company encourages the representation of independent, 14, The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial
non-executive directors and directors representing minority interests reporting requirements of the CCG.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three
Names members; all of them are non-executive directors and the chairman
Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain of the committee is an independent director.
Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan 16. The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every
Mr. Amjad Javed Aftab quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company

with the requirements of the CCG and fully describes the salient
matters required to be disclosed.

. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by
CEO and CFO before approval of the Board.

. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the

Category

Independent Directors i

Executive Directors ii
Non-Executive Directors i

iv Mr. Farhan llyas and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the committee
v Mr. Jamal Ahmed have been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.
vi Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg 17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It

vii Mr. Shahrukh Taimour

on its Board of directors. At present the Board includes:
The Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence under

18.

comprises of three members, of whom two are non-executive
directors.

The Board has set-up effective internal audit function and personnel
involved are suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and
are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

clause 5.19.1(b) of the CCG. 19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have

2. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review
director on more than seven listed companies, including this program of the ICAR, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their
Company. spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and

3. Allthe resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers that thel firm and all its partners are inl co.mpliance with Interngtional
and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a broker of a stock exchange, adopted by the ICAP.
has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange. 20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not

4. A casual vacancy was occurred in the Board by resignation of been appointed to provide other services, except in accordance with
director on January 27, 2017 which was filed by the Directors within the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have
the stipulated time ’ observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured 21. The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim/ final
that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout results, and business decisions, which may materially affect the
the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. market price of company’s securities, was determined and intimated

" . to directors, employees and Pakistan Stock Exchange.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall ) ) o ) ) )
corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A 22. Material/ price sensitive information has b_een disseminated among all
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the market participants at once Througlh Palkistan St.OCk Exchangg.
dates on which they were approved or amended has been 23. The Company has complied with the requirements relating to
maintained. maintenance of register of persons having access to inside

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions information by designated senior management officer in the timely
on material transactions, including the appointment and manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of exclusion of names of persons from the said list.
employment of the CEO, other executive and non-executive 24. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG
directors, have been taken by the board/ shareholders. have been complied with.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and,
in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose For and on behalf of the Board
and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of
the board meetings, along with the agenda and working papers,
were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes 4 A (ﬂ /l« Lor~
of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. i

9. During the year four (4) Directors of the Company attended and -@nore: December 29, 2017 Gh'és ul Hasslan
qualified Directors’ Certification Training Programme from an Institute Chief Executive

~ duly approved by SECP for this purpose.

§ 10. During the year, there was no change in the position of Company
g Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit during
% the year.

g 11. The Directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance
54



Review Report to the
Memlbers on the Statement of
Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance (“the
Code”) prepared by the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended September 30,
2017 to comply with the requirements of Rule 5.19 of the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent
where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement
on internal controls covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of Audit Committee, place before the Board
of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification
for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval
of related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures
to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately

reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the
year ended September 30, 2017.

Lahore: December 29, 2017
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) as
at September 30, 2017 and the related statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies
and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we
report that—

a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b)  inour opinion,

i) the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of accounts and are further
in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

i)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the
year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

c) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Company’s affairs as at September 30, 2017 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity
for the year then ended; and

d)  in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

Lahore
December 29, 2017




Statement of Financial Position

As at September 30, 2017

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 6 3,083,098,426 2,786,100,910
Long-term deposits 7 264,000 395,951
3,083,362,426 2,786,496,861
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 8 60,668,064 64,936,211
Stock-in-trade 9 556,411,054 30,432,460
Loans and advances 10 50,532,771 44,492 986
Trade Debts - unsecured considered good 1,366,352 -
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 11 525,474 8,114,957
Other receivables 12 23,017,216 206,739,717
Tax refunds due from the Government 13 117,868,809 67,412,584
Cash and bank balances 14 27,112,660 19,538,233
837,502,400 441,667,148
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 393,179,871 201,864,352
Accrued mark-up 16 16,490,990 475,333
Short term borrowings 17 407,655,600 -
Current portion of long term liabilities 19 9,495,161 4,541,040
Current portion of Lease liabilities 20 464,906 -
Provision for taxation 21 2,107,249 7,483,672
829,393,777 214,364,397
Working capital employed 8,108,623 227,302,751
3,091,471,049 3,013,799,612
Contingencies and commitments 18 - -
Non-current liabilities
Long term finances 19 158,663,256 32,644,519
Lease liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 20 638,565 -
Long term advances 23 115,000,000 115,000,000
Long term provision 24 1,309,000 1,309,000
Deferred taxation 25 247,816,628 216,394,437
523,427,449 365,347,956
Net capital employed 2,568,043,600 2,648,451,656
Represented by:
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 26 247,307,640 109,097,970
Capital reserve - premium 466,379,523 26,879,210
Loan from sponsors 22 444,871,443 1,123,935,384
Revenue reserves :
- General reserve - 62,000,000
-Accumulated profits 74,292,448 (89,696,504)
74,292,448 22,303,496
Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment - net of tax 27 1,335,192,546 1,366,235,596

2,568,043,600

2,648,451,656

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

@M [l

Lahore Ghias ul Hasan
Chief Executive Officer

December 29, 2017

':-

r

£
Amjad Bashir Hussain
Director
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Profit & Loss Account

For the year ended September 30, 2017

2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees
Sales - net 28 2,581,987,414 2,094,651,482
Cost of sales 29 2,281,868,379 1,888,218,218
Gross profit 300,119,035 206,433,264
Operating expenses:
Distribution cost 30 9,034,707 7,291,667
Administrative expenses 31 107,248,842 82,440,649

(116,283,549) (89,732,316)

Operating profit 183,835,486 116,700,948
Finance cost 32 (124,441,520) (563,626,365)
Other income 33 5,098,009 18,961,537
Profit before taxation 64,491,975 82,036,120
Taxation 34 (832,636,276) 23,961,226
Profit after taxation 31,855,699 105,997,346
Earning per share - basic and diluted 35 1.87 6.21

o,

(6/%4/& fese 2

Lahore Ghias ul Hasan Amijad Bashir Hussain

December 29, 2017 Chief Executive Officer Director




Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended September 30, 2017

Note R%%Tegs R%|Oo1egs
Profit after taxation 31,855,699 105,997,346
Other comprehensive income for the year
[tems that will never be reclassified to comprehensive income
Incremental depreciation for the year 31,043,050 26,356,799
Total comprehensive income for the year 62,898,749 132,354,145

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements

@M s 4

Lahore Ghias ul Hasan Amjad Bashir Hussain
December 29, 2017 Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended September 30, 2017

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 64,491,975 82,036,120
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 6.1.1 103,396,043 88,551,096
Balances written off (7,640,035) (20,220,939)
Commission written off - (20,000)
Gain on foreign currency transaction - (299,278)
Provision for WPPF 3,394,314 4,317,691
Finance cost 32 124,441,520 53,626,365
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.1.3 (340,021) -
223,251,821 125,954,935

Operating profit before working capital changes 287,743,796 207,991,055
Working capital changes
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 4,268,147 13,111,230
Stock-in-trade (625,978,594) 28,655,469
Loans and advances (6,141,885) (224,650)
Trade debts 12,230,676 116,517,826
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 1,095,083 (851,747)
Other receivables 183,722,501 (183,867,345)
Trade and other payables 105,061,968 (566,551,517)

(225,742,104) (83,210,734)
Cash generated from operations 62,001,692 124,780,321
Tax paid (50,456,225) (16,391,822)
WPPF Paid (4,319,459) (329,093)
Dividend paid (10,719,513) -
Finance cost paid (110,489,028) (66,067,991)

(175,984,225) (82,788,906)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (113,982,533) 41,991,415
Cash flow from investing activities
Addition in property, plant and equipment (398,508,371) (106,496,540)
Sale proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,435,250 -
Long term deposits - 57,860
Net cash used in investing activities (896,068,121) (106,438,680)
Cash flow from financing activities
Long term finances 130,972,858 11,011,687
Short term investments - 15,000,000
Short term borrowings 407,655,600 (197,407,861)
Lease rentals paid (818,781) -
Sponsors' loan (20,184,596) 221,118,911
Net cash generated from financing activities 517,625,081 49,722,737
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,574,427 (14,724,528)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19,538,233 34,262,761
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14 27,112,660 19,538,233

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

—x
A et 1 %

Lahore Ghias ul Hasan Amijad Bashir Hussain
December 29, 2017 Chief Executive Officer Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended September 2017

1 Reporting entity

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited "the Company" (formerly known as Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited) was incorporated in
Pakistan in 1968 under the repealed Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Ordinance, 1984). The shares of the
Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchanges. The registered office of the Company is situated at 109-A,
Street No.3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore Cantt., and the mill is located at Jauharabad, District Khushab, Pakistan. The
principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of sugar and its by-products.

2  Basis of preparation

2.1

2.2

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Approved Accounting Standards comprise of such
International Accounting Standards as notified under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever, the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or
the requirements of the said directives take precedence.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for freehold land, building
and plant & machinery which is stated at revalued amount.

The Company's significant accounting policies are stated in note 5. Not all of these significant policies require the
management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following is intended to provide an
understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment of estimation
involved in their application and their impact on these financial statements. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events
and the actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any
change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and the impairment.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. Instances
where the Company's view differs from the views taken by the Income Tax Department at the assessment stage and
where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are
shown as contingent liabilities.

Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a regular basis and provision is made for obsoles-
cence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of related stores and spares. Further the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed on a regular basis and if there is any doubt about the reliability
of these receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

Other areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are signif-
icant to the financial statements are as follows.

e Estimation of net realizable value
e Computation of deferred taxation
e Disclosure of contingencies

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended September 2017

historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, and the results
of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's unconsolidated financial statements or
where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on a regular
basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

3.2 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
The Company reviews the stores, spare parts and loose tools for possible impairment on an annual basis.
Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of stores,
spare parts and loose tools with a corresponding effect on the provision.

3.3 Stock-in-trade
The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on a regular basis. Carrying amount of
stock-in-trade is adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.4 Provision for doubtful debts, advances and other receivables
The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other receivables to assess amount
of bad debts and provision required there against on annual basis.

3.5 Provisions and contingencies
The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on its
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or
provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying
amounts of the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet date.

4 New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations

Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year ended
September 30, 2017:

4.1 There were certain new standards and amendments to the approved accounting standards which became
effective during the period but are considered not to be relevant or having significant effect on the Company’s
operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

Amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective for the company's accounting periods
beginning after October 1, 2016:

4.2 There are certain new amendments to the approved accounting standards that are mandatory for the
company's accounting period beginning after October 1, 2016 but are considered not to be relevant or are
not expected to have any significant effect on the company's operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in
these financial statements.

5  Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated:
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Change in accounting policy

Pursuant to the early adoption of Technical Release 32 "Accounting Directors' Loan" (TR-32) issued by the
institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) dated 25 January 2016. The company has changed it's
accounting policy relating to the interest free loan received from directors, shareholders and owners. As per
clause 3.3.1 of TR-32 " A Loan to an entity by the director which is agreed to be paid at the discretion of the
entity dose not pass the test of liability and is to be recorded as equity at face value. This is not subsequently
remeasured. The decision by the entity at any time in future to deliver cash or any other financial asset to
settle the director's loan would be a direct debit to equity." The effect of change in accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively as described in note 21.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme (the Fund) for its permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and employees at the
rate of 10% of basic salary. The Company's contribution is charged to the statement of comprehensive
income.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and
loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or below equity, in
which case it is recognized in equity or below equity respectively.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income, as adjusted for tax purposes, at the current rate of
tax after taking into account all tax credits, rebates and available tax losses determined in accordance with
prevailing tax laws. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments made during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deferred tax asset can
be utilized, except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability that, at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting nor
taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Property, plant and equipment - owned
Recognition

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery
are stated at revalued amount. Cost of tangible assets consists of historical cost pertaining to erection /
construction period and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to income during the period in which they are incurred.
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5.5

5.6

5.7

Depreciation

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment except for freehold land is charged to income
applying the reducing balance method so as to write off the historical cost/revalued amounts of an asset over
its estimated useful life at the rates as disclosed in note 6. Depreciation on addition is charged from the date
the asset is available for use and on disposal up to date when the asset is derecognized.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of comprehensive income for the year, when the asset is derecognized.

Accounting for leases and assets subject to finance lease

5.5.1 Finance lease

Recognition

Leases where the Company has aquired substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance lease. Assets subject to finance lease are initially recognized at the commence-
ment of the lease term at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease
agreements and the fair value of the leased assets, each determined at the inception of the lease.
Subsequently these assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment loss. The related rental obligations, net off finance cost, are included in liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are classified as current and non current depending
upon the timing of payments.

Financial charges

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate
on the balance outstanding. The finance cost is charged to income over the lease term.

Depreciation

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated in the same manner and at the same rates
used for similar owned assets, so as to depreciate these assets over their estimated useful lives in
view of certainty of ownership of these assets at the end of lease term. Depreciation of the leased
assets is charged to income.

Deferred income

Income arising from sale and lease back transaction, if any, which results in finance lease, is
deferred and amortized equally over the lease period.

552  Operating lease

Leases where significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income
on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment losses. Transfers are made to
relevant fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use.

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that
it is impaired. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. A
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5.8

5.9

5.10

5.12

5.13

financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had
a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or
cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined at average running cost. ltems
considered obsolete are carried at nil value. ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus
other charges incurred thereon. Cost is determined at average running cost.

Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV) except Molasses and Bagasse which is
valued at NRV. Cost in relation to raw material, work in process and finished goods represents average cost
comprising direct material, labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads. NRV represents the estimated
selling price less cost necessarily to be incurred for such sale. Cost is determined as follows;

Work-in-process : At estimated cost.
Finished goods - sugar : Lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
discounts and applicable taxes. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing involvement of management with
the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

e Sale of goods is recorded when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
customer;

Revenue from the sale of electricity is recognized on transmission of electricity;

Interest and rental income are recognized on accrual basis;

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established; and
Sale of scrap is recognized on actual realization basis.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and
are included in current liabilities to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent
of the borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset up to the date of its
commissioning.

Provisions
A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an out flow of resource embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts originated by the Company are recognized and carried at original invoice value less any allow-
ance for uncollectible amounts. An estimated provision for doubtful debts is made when there is objective
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5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

evidence that collection of the full amount is no longer probable. The amount of provision is charged to
income. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Other receivables are stated at amortized cost. Known
impaired receivables are written off, while receivables considered doubtful are provided for.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities of trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Dividend

The dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved
by the shareholders.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that
comprise the financial assets and in case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
is included in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently
measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular recognition methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to
settle on net basis or to realize the assets and the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and bank balances.

Foreign currencies transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, except those covered by forward contracts, which are stated at
contracted rates. Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing at the
date of transaction except for those covered by forward contracts, which are translated at contracted rates.
Non monetary items are translated into Pak Rupee on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values
are determined. Exchange differences are included in income currently.

Investments

Investment in subsidiary company is measured at cost in the Company's separate financial statements, as
per the requirements of IAS-27 “Separate Financial Statements”. However, at subsequent reporting dates,
the Company reviews the carrying amount of the investment and its recoverability to determine whether there
is an indication that such investment has suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists the
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are
recognized as an expense.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out as arms' length transactions by the Company using the
methods prescribed under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presenta-
tion currency.
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6.1.1 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:
2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 29 101,328,122 86,780,074
Administrative expenses 31 2,067,921 1,771,022
108,396,043 88,551,096
6.1.2 Plant and machinery includes mark up capitalized amounting to Rs. 3,349,038/-.
6.1.3  Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Particulars Cost  Net Book Value Sale proceeds  Gain/ (loss) on proceeds Name of purchaser
Toyota Grande
(LEE-15-3740) 2,381,340 1,577,648 2,200,000 622,352 Toyota Motors
Honda City
(LED-08-5031) 781,250 517,582 235,251 (282,331) Jamal Ahmed
2017 3,162,590 2,095,230 2,435,251 340,021
2016 - -
6.1.4  The value of labor colony land at Jauharabad acquired from Housing and Physical Planning Department (PHATA),
Jauharabad has not yet been settled. The estimated liability on this account amounting to Rs.1,309,000 is duly account-
ed for in books of accounts of the Company (see Note 24).
6.1.5 If the freehold land, building and plant and machinery were measured using the cost model, the carrying amount would
be as follows:
Particulars Cost Accumulated Net book
depreciation value
2017 (Rupees)
Freehold land 1,648,310 - 1,648,310
Building on freehold land 200,040,336 89,719,602 110,320,734
Plant and machinery 1,516,310,297 638,017,913 878,292,384
1,717,998,943 727,737,515 990,261,428
2016
Freehold land 1,648,310 - 1,648,310
Building on freehold land 180,181,047 83,913,248 96,267,799
Plant and machinery 1,414,742,493 591,791,998 822,950,495
1,596,571,850 675,705,246 920,866,604

6.2 Capital work-in-progress

This cost incurred at BMR program of the Company in previous year and transferred to fixed assets as follows:

Description Opening balance Additions Transferred Closing balance
during the year to / (from)
(Rupees)
Plant and machinery 1,863,861 190,818,333 42,670,425 235,352,619
Advances for Capital expenditure 52,381,424 65,551,253 (52,381,424) 65,551,253
54,245,285 256,369,586 (9,710,999) 300,903,872
6.2.1 Capital work in progress includes mark up capitalized amounting to Rs. 8,585,591 and Rs. 130,582 in plant and
machinery and advances for capital expenditure, respectively.
6.2.2 Advances for capital expenditure relates to the purchase of plant and equipment.

7 Long-term deposits

This represents interest free deposits for provision of utilities at plant and security to landlord of head office and are
refundable on disconnection of services.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
8  Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stores 27,336,656 28,697,812
Spare parts 31,509,335 34,541,647
Loose tools 1,822,073 1,696,752
60,668,064 64,936,211
9  Stock-in-trade
Work in process 1,958,426 1,999,238
Finished goods 9.1 554,452,628 28,433,222
556,411,054 30,432,460
9.1 Finished goods are pledged against short term borrowing from various banks.
10 Loans and advances
Advances to suppliers 24,751,427 17,522,395
Advances to employees 6,253,494 4,985,373
Agricultural loan 10.1 7,560,026 7,966,145
Others 10.2 655,305 643,705
L.C deposit 10.3 11,312,519 13,375,368
50,532,771 44,492,986
10.1 This represents interest free advances to sugarcane growers, which are adjustable against sugarcane supply by them.
10.2 This represent amount receivable from Radiant Power (Pvt.) limited on account of incorporation expenses.
10.3 This comprises deposits against L.C for fixed assets of Rs.3.90 million and consumables of Rs.7.41million.
11 Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Prepaid expenses 525,474 1,620,557
TCP deposit 11.1 - 6,494,400
525,474 8,114,957
11.1 This represents deposit with Trading Corporation of Pakistan (TCP). The amount was written off during the year.
12 Other receivables - unsecured considered good

Excise duty recoverable 12.1 10,500,922 10,500,922
Export fund refund 12.2 2,746,250 2,746,250
Special excise duty refundable 12.3 505,200 505,200
Rebate receivable on export of sugar 12.4 - 183,722,500
Others 12.5 9,264,844 9,264,845

23,017,216 206,739,717
121 This represents refund allowed by the Central Excise Appellate Tribunal, Lahore, in the light of criteria set up by

the Supreme Court of Pakistan, against Central Excise Duty paid during the season 1988-89.

12.2 This represents relief granted by the Lahore High Court against previous years' demand.

12.3 This represents an amount paid under protest as 1% Special Excise Duty on the goods manufactured prior to
Finance Bill 2007, whereas it was leviable on goods manufactured/ imported from July-01,2007, vide Circular No.

1(3) Fed 2007 dated 28th August, 2007.

124 This represents rebate receivable from Government against export of sugar.

12.5 This represents sales tax amount recoverable from customers against sale of goods.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
13 Tax refunds due from the Government
Opening balance 67,412,584 51,020,762
Add: Tax deducted during the year 50,456,225 16,391,822
117,868,809 67,412,584

14

15

16

17

13.1 The assessments of the Company have been completed for and up to financial year ended on September 30,

2016.
Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand 293,525 217,567
Cash at banks - saving accounts 14.1 79,577 25,163
Cash at banks - current accounts 26,739,558 19,295,503
27,112,660 19,538,233
141 The balances in saving accounts carry markup at 2.55% per annum (2016: Rs.2.75%).
Trade and other payables
Creditors 15,842,139 26,595,434
Salaries and wages payable 11,388,259 11,968,159
Accrued liabilities 2,231,688 4,200,375
Advances from customers 15.1 199,111,371 115,051,239
Income tax deducted at source 69,648 323,204
Income tax payable 15.2 6,590,508 -
Sugarcane cess payable 15.3 3,001,109 3,001,109
Sales tax payable 15.4 40,174,325 5,910,582
Security deposit 698,868 1,176,795
Unclaimed dividend 797,754 607,470
Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF) 3,439,840 4,364,985
Other loans from sponsors 15.5 109,834,362 28,665,000
393,179,871 201,864,352
151 This represents advances received from customers for molasses/sugar sales.

15.2 This represents income tax liability related to tax year 2011created vide order of learned Deputy Commisioner

Inland Revenue.

15.3 This represents sugarcane cess demanded by Cane Commissioner, Lahore against sugarcane purchased from KPK.
154 This includes Sales Tax payable for the month of September, 2017 and provision against pending cases of sales

tax for the year 1999-2000 amounting to Rs.37.84 million Rs.3.44 million respectively.

15.5 This represents short term loan from sponsor which includes interest bearing and non interest bearing loans.

Accrued mark-up
Accrued mark-up on:

- Long term finances 3,486,773
- Short term borrowings 13,004,217
16,490,990

475,333

475,333

Short term borrowings - secured
Sanction limit

‘Million'
Mark-up based borrowings
from conventional banks
Cash finance 1600 171 332,000,000
Islamic mode of financing
Morabaha finances 1000 17.2 75,655,600
2600 407,655,600
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17.1 These facilities have been obtained from various conventional banks to meet working capital requirements and are
secured by charge over current and future assets (fixed and current) of the company, pledge of sugar stock and
personal guarantees of sponsors and corporate guarantee of Cane Processing (Pvt.) Limited.

These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from matching Kibor+2% to matching Kibor+3% per annum payable
quarterly.
The aggregate availaible short term funded facilities amounting to Rs. 1.600 Billion (2016: Rs. 0.700 Billion).

17.2 These facilities have been obtained from various islamic banks to meet working capital requirements and are secured
by charge over current and future assets (fixed and current) of the company, pledge of sugar stock, lien over import
documents and personal guarantees of sponsors and corporate guarantee of Cane Processing (Pvt.) Limited.

These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from matching Kibor+2% to matching Kibor+3% per annum payable
quarterly.

The aggregate availaible short term funded facilities amounting to Rs.1.000 Billion (2016: Rs. 0.850 Billion).
18 Contingencies and commitments

18.1Contingencies
The followings are known contingencies as on September 30, 2017

18.1.1 Since Federal Excise Duty (FED) is leviable on goods produced or manufactured, therefore FED is not
leviable on sale of sugar produced prior to the Finance Bill 2011. Hence FED amounting to Rs. 58.881
million has not been accounted for in these financial statements. The Company has filed a writ petition in
the Honorable Lahore High Court against FBR show cause notice dated 19-09-2012 against the demand
of Rs. 58.881 million.

18.1.2  The Income Tax Department raised a demand of Rs. 197.075 million on account of non deduction of tax
while making payment to sugar cane suppliers. The demand was abolished by the Commissioner of
income tax like in some other similar cases. However, the department has filed an appeal against the
Commissioner's order. The company is hopeful that the tribunal decision would be in its favor.

18.1.3  The company has filed a writ petition against the amendments of finance act 2014 on "Alternate Corpo-
rate taxes", implication on tax year 2013 of company against which a demand of Rs. 50.262 million has
been established, the said amendments would not be implemented as the income realized was before
the said amendments, amendments become applicable after July 1, 2014.

18.1.4  The company has filed an appeal and stay application before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I)
against demand of Rs. 82,161,816 created by Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue vide order under
section 161(1A)/205(3) which is still pending for adjudication.

18.2 Commitments
18.2.1 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure at the year end is Rs. 22.720 milion (2016: Rs. 67.296 million).

19 Long term finances - secured 2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Faysal Bank Limited - 4,541,040
Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited 191 168,158,417 32,644,519
Less: Current portion 9,495,161 4,541,040
158,663,256 32,644,519

19.1 This represents long term loan against sanction DM facilityof Rs. 150 Million obtained from Albaraka Bank Pakistan
Limited for power plant and carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3% and mark-up is payable on
quarterly basis. The said loan is secured against:

i) ABPL's exclusive charge over DM assets amounting to Rs.150 Million (including power plant and allied
parts, accessories, errections, civil construction etc to be registered with SECP).
i) Lien over import documents.

The loan was to be repaid on quarterly basis within 3 years after commissioning of power plant.
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This also includes long term loan against sanctioned DM facility of Rs. 45 Million obtained from Albaraka Bank Pakistan
Limited for import of machinery and carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3% and mark-up is payable
on quarterly basis. The said loan is secured against:

i) Lien over import documents.
i) 20% Equity contribution for DM.

The loan is to be repaid on quarterly basis as per schedule.

20 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Minimum lease Finance cost for Present value

payments future periods
Not later than one year 539,880 74,974 464,906
Later than one year 674,850 36,285 638,565
1,214,730 111,259 1,103,471

20.1 The Company has entered into lease agreement with financial institution for vehicle. Lease rentals are payable on
monthly basis and includes finance cost at the rate of three months Kibor plus 2.25 bps per anum (2016: Nil) which
has been used as discounting factor. The Company has the option to purchase the assets upon completion of lease
period and has the intention to excercise such option.

21 Provision for taxation 2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Balance at beginning of the year 7,483,672 -
Add: Provision for the year 2,107,249 7,483,672
9,590,921 7,483,672
Less: Prior year adjustments/ payments (7,488,672) -
Balance at end of the year 21.1 2,107,249 7,483,672

21.1Provision for current tax is calculated as per provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 at the current rates.

22 Loan from sponsors

Loan from sponsors 444,871,443 1,123,935,384

22.1This represents interest free loans provided to the Company by its Shareholders. These loans are agreed to be repay-
able at the Company's discretion which is intended to be exercised by the Company after 30th September 2018. In
the absence of specific guidance available, the Company had recognized these loans at face value. However, Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued Technical Release 32 "Accounting Directors' Loans" (TR-32) on
25th January 2016 which provides specific guidance on Directors' loans that are interest free and repayable at the
discretion of the entity. The Company has early adopted (TR-32) and has accounted for these loans accordingly.

As a result of specific guidance under (TR-32) the company recognized loan from sponsors amounting to Rs. 444.871
million (2016: Rs. 1,123.94 million) as at 30th September 2017. During the year the company issued 11,572,716 shares
at premium of Rs. 39.92 per share to sponsors.

23 Long term advances - unsecured

This represents interest free unsecured advances received from customers which are adjustable against sales after
September 30, 2018.

24 Long term provision

This represents labor colony land at Jauharabad against which a case is pending with Housing and Physical Planning
Department (PHATA), Jauharabad. On account of legal proceedings the management expects that the payment

against this liability shall arise after September 30, 2018.
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Less : Accumulated incremental depreciation

25 Deferred taxation 2017 2016
Rupees Rupees
Accelerated tax depreciation 138,640,436 139,502,781
Tax credits / losses (150,077,647) (195,666,347)
Surplus on revaluation of related assets 259,253,839 272,558,003
247,816,628 216,394,437
26 Share capital
2017 016 2017 16
—————————————— (Number)------------ ------------(Rupees)----------
26.1 Authorized share capital
70,000,000 70,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 700,000,000 700,000,000
26.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
873,180 873,180 Shares allotted on reorganization of
Kohinoor Industries Limited
of Rs.10/- each 8,731,800 8,731,800
125,008 125,008 Shares issued for cash
of Rs. 10 each 1,250,080 1,250,080
4,254,210 2,005,959 Shares issued as fully paid
bonus shares of Rs. 10/- each 42,542,100 20,059,590
7,905,650 7,905,650 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each 79,056,500 79,056,500
11,672,716 Issue of shares against loan
from sponsors 115,727,160 -
24,730,764 10,909,797 247,307,640 109,097,970
27 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax
Land 816,219,690 816,219,690
Buildings 100,592,998 100,592,998
Plant and machinery 855,042,404 855,042,404

1,771,855,092
(177,408,707)

1,771,855,092
(133,061,493)

Less: Deferred tax liability

Opening balance

Addition during the year
Tax on incremental depreciation for the year

1,594,446,385

1,638,793,599

272,658,003 193,637,927

- 90,761,536
(13,304,164) (11,841,460)
259,253,839 272,558,003

1,335,192,546

1,366,235,596

28 Sales - net

Sugar - local 2,292,974,982 1,061,268,754
Sugar - export 210,704,815 955,132,061
2,503,679,797 2,016,400,815
Molasses 215,067,659 109,529,497
Mud 3,606,375 480,097
Bagasse 119,432,893 61,670,010
2,841,786,724 2,188,080,419

Less:
Federal excise duty 227,553,900 82,170,553
Sales tax 28,877,410 9,546,664
Commission on sale 3,368,000 1,711,720
259,799,310 93,428,937

2,681,987,414

2,094,651,482
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2017
Rupees

2016
Rupees

29 Cost of sales

Cost of sugarcane purchased and consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits 29.1
Chemicals and stores consumed

Packing material

Fuel

Power

Repairs and maintenance

Workers' welfare

Insurance

Depreciation 6.1.1
Other factory expenses

2,490,878,285
99,062,018
24,621,852
17,607,752
44,508
9,042,002
47,273,537
3,870,227
1,986,471
101,328,122
12,142,198

1,604,215,822
75,325,299
21,683,807
13,080,586
843,727
8,712,015
32,719,655
3,112,427
1,738,178
86,780,074
11,351,159

Opening work-in-process
Closing work-in-process

Cost of goods manufactured
Opening stock of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods

2,807,846,972

1,8569,662,749

1,099,239 2,565,381
(1,958,426) (1,999,238)
40,813 566,143
2,807,887,785 1,860,128,892
28,433,222 56,522,548
(554,452,628) (28,433,222)
(526,019,406) 28,089,326

2,281,868,379

1,888,218,218

30 Distribution cost

29.1This includes a sum of Rs. 992,734 (2016: Rs. 763,840) relating to retirement benefits.

Salaries, wages and benefits 30.1 6,723,162 5,164,915
Communication 170,209 142,398
Vehicles running and maintenance 192,650 167,290
General charges 1,948,686 1,817,064

9,034,707 7,291,667

30.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 70,910 (2016: Rs. 46,988) relating to retirement benefits.
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
31 Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.1 77,054,189 59,072,803
Staff welfare 3,908,209 2,426,117
Legal and professional charges 5,492,751 4,412,168
Rent, rate and taxes 4,160,227 2,972,283
Fuel and power 806,434 890,774
Vehicles running and maintenance 2,800,225 1,985,550
Travelling and conveyance 1,076,337 1,071,462
Printing and stationery 1,327,779 792,107
Telecommunication 577,220 441,979
Repair and maintenance 262,597 94,785
Postage and telegrams 239,467 154,003
Advertisement 369,035 107,550
Auditors' remuneration 31.2 1,513,000 1,469,250
Charity and donations 31.3 1,678,624 444,500
Depreciation 6.1.1 2,067,921 1,771,022
Insurance 3,313,105 2,464,208
Miscellaneous 606,722 1,870,088
107,248,842 82,440,649
31.1This includes a sum of Rs. 709,096 (2016: 540,366) relating to retirement benefits.
31.2 Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee 400,000 400,000
Half yearly review 63,000 63,000
Tax consultancy fee 1,050,000 1,006,250
1,513,000 1,469,250
31.83The Company's directors or their spouses have no interest in any donation.
32 Finance cost
Mark-up on long term finances 121,131 1,382,830
Mark-up on short term borrowings 117,875,887 45,749,231
Bank commission on exports 1,329,248 3,177,092
Bank charges 5,115,254 3,317,212

124,441,620 53,626,365
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2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
33 Other income
Balances written off (5,956,993) 20,220,939
Gain on disposal 340,021 -
Forfieted advances from customers 13,597,028 -
Miscellaneous 512,267 2,759,011
Gain on foreign currency transaction - 299,278
Provision for workers' profit participation fund (3,394,314) (4,317,691)
5,098,009 18,961,537
34 Taxation
Income Tax
Current year 34.1 2,107,249 7,483,672
Prior year (893,164) -
1,214,085 7,483,672
Deferred tax 31,422,191 (31,444,898)
32,636,276 (23,961,226)

34.1 Current tax expense represents the income tax liability on export of sugar which fall under final tax regime. Whereas
the tax calculated as per section 113 has been adjusted against tax credits allowed under section 65-B.

34.2 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented in these
financial statements, as the total income of the Company falls under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

35 Earning per share

35.1 Earning per share - basic

Profit after taxation Rupees 31,855,699 105,997,346
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 17,070,864 17,070,864
Earning per share - basic Rupees 1.87 6.21

35.2 Earning per share - diluted
There is no dilution effect on the basic earning per share as the Company has no such commitments.
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36 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Director and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including all benefits, to the chief executive,
directors and executives of the Company is as follows:

Directors

Chief executive Executive directors Non executive directors Executives
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
- - - --(Rupees)---- - -
Managerial remuneration - - - - - - 26,020,500 19,025,940
Utilities - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - 26,020,500 19,025,940

Number of key executives /

non executives *q 1 1 3 6 2 29 13

* The Chief executive hold 5,500 shares of the Company

36.1 Executives are employees whose basic salaries exceed Rs. 500,000 in a financial year.
36.2The Chief Executive and Directors have voluntarily forgone their remuneration and allowances since 2015.

37. Operating segments

37.1 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.
37.2 Revenue from sale of sugar represents 88.10 % (2016 : 92.27 %) of the total revenue of the Company.
37.3 90.74% (2016: 54.44 %) sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.

37.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at September 30, 2017 are located in Pakistan.
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38 Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

Maturity Maturity after l\/latu]gity after
oneuyetaor up to ﬂ?/reweyég%r wevear 2017 2016
Non-interest bearing
Long term deposits - 264,000 - 264,000 395,951
Trade debts 1,366,352 - - 1,366,352 -
Prepayments and other
receivables 23,017,216 - - 23,017,216 206,739,717
Cash and bank balances 27,112,660 - - 27,112,660 19,538,233
51,496,228 264,000 - 51,760,228 226,673,901
Financial liabilities
Balance sheet items
Interest bearing
Long term finances 9,495,161 158,663,256 - 168,158,417 37,185,559
Lease Liability
against Finance Lease 464,906 638,565 - 1,103,471
Short term borrowings 407,655,600 - - 407,655,600 -
Non - interest bearing
Long term advances -1 115,000,000 - 115,000,000 115,000,000
Other liabilities - 1,309,000 - 1,309,000 1,309,000
Trade and other payables 393,179,871 - - 393,179,871 209,348,024
Accrued mark-up 16,490,990 - - 16,490,990 475,333
827,286,528 | 275,610,821 - 1,102,897,349 363,317,916
Off balance sheets items
Federal Excise Duty 58,880,664 - - 58,880,664 58,880,664
Income Tax 197,075,000 - - 197,075,000 197,075,000
Capital expenditure 22,720,957 - - 22,720,957 67,295,967
Alternate corporate Tax 50,262,000 - - 50,262,000 50,262,000
Minimum Tax 6,590,000 - - 6,590,000 6,590,000
Federal Excise Duty/Sales Tax 11,720,000 - - 11,720,000 11,720,000
347,248,621 - - 347,248,621 391,823,631
1,174,535,149 | 275,610,821 - 1,450,145,970 755,141,547

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk management

framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties fail
completely to perform as contracted.

Credit risk from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial
institution, as well as credit exposures to customers, including trade receivables and committed transactions. Out of
total financial assets of Rs. 50.393 million (2016: Rs. 226.673 million), the financial assets that are subject to credit risk
amounted to Rs. 23.281 million (2016: Rs.207.135 million).

For trade receivables, internal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of the customer, taking into
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account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal and external ratings
in accordance with the limits set by the management. The utilization of credit limit is regularly monitored. Accordingly, the credit
risk is minimal and the company also believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Concentration of the credit risk arises when the number of counter parties engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in
economic, political or other conditions. The company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration risk.

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any credit enhancements. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 264,000 395,951
Other receivables 23,017,217 206,739,717
Cash and bank balances 27,112,660 19,538,233
50,393,877 226,673,901

No provision for doubtful debt has been made during the year for local and foreign customers.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The
Company is not materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially all obligations / commitments of the Company are short term
in nature and are restricted to the extent of available liquidity. In addition, the Company has obtained running finance facilities from
various commercial banks to meet any deficit, if required to meet the short term liquidity commitments.

Significant balances of financial assets and liabilities shall mature within twelve months as evident from the information present-
ed above.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will effect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cashflows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arrises from sales, purchases and resulting balances that are dominated in a currency other than
functional currency. The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at the reporting date.

Interest rate risk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Effective interest rate Carrying amount
2017 2016 2017 2016

—————— Percentage------- ---------Rupees---------
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Long term finance 9.01% t0 9.15% 7.48% t0 9.01% 168,158,417 37,185,559
Loan from associates Nil Nil Nil Nil
Short term borrowings 8.07% to0 9.40% 8.55% t0 9.81% 407,655,600 -

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

Profit and loss 100 bp

Increase decrease
As at 30 September 2017
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities (1,179,970) 1,179,970
As at 30 September 2016
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities (471,321) 471,321
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The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on loss for the year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount for which an
asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the sustained development of its businesses. The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and
reserves by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, appropriation of
amounts to capital reserves or/and issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and
keeping in view future investment requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings ("long
term loan" and "short term borrowings" as shown in the statement of financial position). Total capital comprises shareholders' equity
as shown in the balance sheet under "share capital and reserves".

The salient information relation to capital risk management of the Company as of Sep 30, 2017 and Sep 30, 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees
Total borrowings 576,917,488 37,185,559
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (27,112,660) (19,538,233)
Net debt 549,804,828 17,647,326
Total equity 2,568,043,600 2,648,451,656
Total capital 3,117,848,428 2,666,098,982
Gearing ratio 17.63% 0.66%
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39 Number of employees

2017 2016
Number Number
Average number of employees for the year 736 220
Total number of employees at year end 531 219

40 Plant capacity and production

M.Ton M.Ton
Cane crushing capacity 910,000 910,000
Cane crushed 546,857 340,519
Sugar production 53,972 33,205

40.1 The cane crushing capacity is based on crushing capacity of line-Il, which is currently in operation.
40.2 The cane crushing capacity is based on 130 days (highest achieved operating days during last seven years).

41 Related party transactions / balances

The related parties comprise directors of the Company, key employees, provident fund trust, associated undertakings and
subsidiary company. Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specially disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

2017 2016
Relationship Nature of transactions Rupees Rupees
Post employment benefit plans Provident fund contribution 1,772,740 1,351,194
Subsidiary Payment against expenses 11,600 1,123,935,384
Associates Long term loan received 8,546,796 28,665,000
42 Disclosure relating to Provident Fund Trust
Unit
The following information is based on un-audited financial statements of Provident Fund Trust.
Size of fund - total assets Rupees 25,996,577 22,054,530
Cost of investments made Rupees 24,050,000 9,250,000
Percentage of investments made Percentage 92.51% 41.94%
Fair value of investment Rupees 24,050,000 20,535,000
The breakup of fair value of investments is as follows:
2017 2016
Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage
Defence Saving Certificates 24,050,000 92.51% 20,535,000 41.94%
24,050,000 92.51% 20,535,000 41.94%

The investments of the Provident Fund Trust are in compliance with the provision of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

43 Events after the statement of financial position date

There are no subsequent events occurring after the statement of financial position date which required disclosure in these
financial statements.

44 Date of authorization for issue
These financial statements were authorized for issue on December 29, 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

45 General

45.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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Definitions and Glossary of Terms

Sugar

Sugar, once a “white-gold”, is the generic name for sweet-tasting.Sugar cane and sugar beets are the common sources of this sweetener,

soluble carbohydrates which are used in food.

FY
Financial Year

HR & RC

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
HSE

Health, Safety and Environment

IASB
International Accounting Standards Board

ICAP
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

IFAC
International Federation of Accountants

IFRIC
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards

JSML
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited

KIBOR
Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate

KPK
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

LTL
Long Term Loan

MT
Metric Tons

NBFI
Non-Bank Financial Institution

NTN
National Tax Number

PSX

Molasses
Molasses is thick, dark brown juice obtained from raw sugar during the refining process
Bagasse
Bagasse is the dry pulpy residue left after the extraction of juice from sugarcane.
Mud
Mud is produced during distribution of process flow to sugar production.
ABPL
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
ACT
Alternate Corporate Tax
AGM
Annual General Meeting
ATIR
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
ATL
Active Taxpayer List
BMR
Balancing, Modernization and Rehabilitation
CCG
Code of Corporate Governance
CDC
Central Depository Company
CDS
Central Depository System
CEO
Chief Executive Officer
CFO
Chief Financial Officer
CNIC
Computerized National Identity Card
CPL
Cane Processing (Pvt) Limited
CSR
Corporate Social Responsibility
Y
Cane Crushing Year
DFI

Development Finance Institution

DM
Diminishing Musharka

EBIT
Earnings Before Interest and Tax

EBITDA
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization

EOGM
Extra Ordinary General Meeting

FBR
Federal Board of Revenue

FED
Federal Excise Duty

FESCO
Faisalabad Electric Supply Company

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

R&D
Research and Development

ROE
Return on Equity
SECP

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

SRO
Statutory Regulation Order

STL
Short Term Loan

TCD

Total Crushing Per Day
usD

United States Dollar

WPPF
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
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33%  Shareholders Equity

Rs. 2,568,043,600

Financial
Position

on September 30, 2017

%  Non Current Liabilities

Rs. 523,427,449

11% Current Assets
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88.38% Cost of Sales

0.35% Distribution Expenses

Rs. 9,034,707

Financial
Performance

by September 30, 2017

3.96% Administrative Expenses
Rs. 102,150,833

4.82% Financial Expenses
Rs. 124,441,520

1.26% Taxation
Rs. 32,636,276

1.23% Net Profit
Rs. 31,855,699
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j AUHARABAD 4t JAUHARABAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Sugar Mills Limited 109-A, Street No. 3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore - Cantt.
PROXY FORM
I/'We
of

being a member of JAUHARABAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint

Name (Folio/CDC A/C No. if Member)
of

or failing him / her

Name (Folio/CDC A/C No. if Member)
of

as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held at its Registered Office, 109-A, Street No. 3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore - Cantt., on Saturday, January 27,
2018 at 11:30 AM and any adjournment thereof :

As witnessed given under my/our hand(s) day of January, 2018.

1. Witness:
Signature
N Affix Revenue

ame Stamp of Rs. 5/-
CNIC No.
Address
2. Witness: SIGNATURE OF MEMBER /

ATTORNEY
Signature
Name
SHARES HELD :
CNIC No.
Address
Folio No. CDC Account No.
Participant Account
ID No.
Notes: CNICNo. [ [ [ [ [ [-T [ [ [ T[] ][]
I. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office, not less than 48

hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

2. CDC Shareholders, entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting, must bring with them their
Computerized National Identity Cards (CNIC) /Passports in original to prove his/her identity, and in case
of Proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport.

3 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
ofthe nominee should be attached with the proxy form.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited

109-A, Street No. 3, Cavalry Ground,
Lahore - Cantt.
Tel : 042 37175229
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Registered Office: Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
109-A, Street No.3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore Cantt.
Phone # 042 37175229 | Fax # 37175256 | Email: info@jsml.com.pk




